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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
AM / 7609

To the Shareholders of

Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company

(A Public Shareholding Limited Company)
Amman - Jordan

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jordan Petroleum Refinery
Company and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2017, and the
consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in owners' equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, except for the possible effect of the matters stated in paragraphs (1
and 2) within the “Basis of Qualified Opinion” paragraphs, and the effect of what is
mentioned in paragraphs (3) and (4) below, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of the Company as of December 31, 2017, and its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis of Qualified Opinion

1. The Company is in the process of negotiations with the Government of Jordan
regarding the entitlement rights of the provision for doubtful debts, provision
for slow-moving and obsolete inventory, and the provision for gas cylinders.
We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the
entitlement rights as of December 31, 2017 due to their unavailability.
Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to these
amounts were necessary.

2.  The Company did not receive a confirmation letter of balances and transactions
as of December 31, 2017 from the Ministry of Finance, as stated in note (33).
We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about these
balances and transactions as of that date. Consequentily, we were unable to
determine whether any adjustments to these balances were necessary.
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As stated in note (14/d), the Company deferred the recognition of losses related
to the cost of the imported Indian cylinders. Had management recognized this
loss when incurred without deferral during the year 2016 the net income and
retained earnings would have been reduced by an amount of JD 5,067,628
instead of JD 1,266,907 as of December 31, 2016 and income for the year
ended December 31, 2017 would have been increased by JD 1,266,907 and
retained earnings would have decreased by JD 3,800,721.

The Company did not offset certain intercompany transaction between the
Company and its subsidiaries in compliance to the signed agreement with the
Government of Jordan. This constitutes a departure from IFRSs without any
impact on the net consolidated income.

Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs
Without further qualifying our opinion mentioned above, we draw attention to the
following:

1-

As stated in Note {1 & 31/c) to the consolidated financial statements, no
agreement has been reached with the Government of Jordan to date regarding
the transfer treatment of the Company’s assets to its subsidiary at book value.
In the management’s opinion the Net Book Value method used is the ideal
method of transfer.

As stated in Note (6/c) to the consolidated financial statements, the Alia
Company - Royal Jordanian Airlines have been granted a quantity discount and
a reduction of interest that was directly charged to the Ministry of Finance
account in execution of the Prime Ministry decisions.

As stated in the Note (14/h) to the consolidated financial statements, there are
negotiations between the Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company
(subsidiary Company) and the Ministry of Finance regarding the entitlement
rights of the petroleum products import pricing differences in an amount of JD
6.3 Million. Noting that these differences were recorded as other credit
balances.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the other ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in Jordan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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ey Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were most
significant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the current year.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consoclidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matter described below to be
the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Sufficiency of Allowance for Doubtful Debts

Provision for doubtful receivables is a key audit
matter, as its calculation requires management's
use of an accounting estimates. Moreover, net
accounts receivable amounted to JD 863 million,
representing 63 % of total assets as of December
31, 2017.

The Group has various types of accounts
receivable, as the Company sells fuel derivatives
to various sectors, such as government's, public
institutions, the three marketing companies
operating in the Kingdom and others. This
requires adoption of a methodology for the
classification of these receivables, significant
estimates to calculate the needed provisions. The
Company does not take a provision against
governmental receivables or receivables granted
by the government. However, the Company
calculates the impairment provision for non-
government receivables based on their aging for
each client separately after analyzing and
monitoring the ability to pay their dues,
payments terms, and guarantees.

Inventory

The inventory of the Company is considered a
key audit matter. The inventory consists of fuel
derivatives, lube oil and spare parts and the
inventory should be recorded according to
International Financial Reporting Standards at
cost or net realizable value whichever is lower,

The Company’s core operations requires the
existence of many types of inventory such as
crude oil, fuel derivatives and spare parts in order
maintain the continuity of the Company
operations, the inventory recording process
using the cost or net realizable value whichever
is lower required assessing the selling value to be
comparing with original cost and recognize any
losses Immediately, in addition to the calculating
the provision for slow-moving and obsolete
inventories which requires to use a key
accounting estimates prepared by specialized
staff according to related annual technical
studies.

Scope of Audit to Address the Risk

Cur audit procedures included an
understanding the nature of these
accounts receivable, testing the
adopted internal controls related to the
granting process, monitoring credit, in
addition to the internal controls
regarding the provision calculation.
Meanwhile, we studied and understood
the policies followed in calculating the
provisions and evaluating the factors
affecting the calculation process, as
well as discussed these factors with
Executive Management and those
charged with governance. Moreover,
we selected a sample of these accounts
after taking into consideration the risks
associated with the payment methods,
guarantees, and collaterals. We also
discussed with the management their
views regarding some receivables and
related provisions we have recalculated
the required provision for some
accounts,

Scope of Audit to Address the Risk
Our audit procedures included
understanding inventory, testing the
effectiveness of the company’s internal
controls, regarding purchases, costing
storage and measuring the inventory
net realizable value compare it to
original costs in addition to the internal
controls for calculating the provision.
We studied and understood the
followed procedures in calculating the
provision / pricing and net realizable
value. We evaluated the factors that
would affect the calculation process
and discussed them with Executive
Management, we also discussed with
the management the sufficiency of the
recorded provision related to the slow
moving and obsolete inventory and
tested a sample.
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Other Matter

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are a translation of the statutory
consolidated financial statements In the Arabic language to which reference should
be made.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the other information in the annual report excluding the consolidated
financial statements and the independent auditor thereon, which is expected to be
made available to us after the date of our audit report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related te going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting uniess management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA’s, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal
control.

-4 -
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> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

> Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and based on the audit evidenced obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represents the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

> Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performers of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion. ;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards
procedures,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements
of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law and regulations preclude public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
The Company maintains proper accounting records which are in agreement with the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. We recommend that the General
Assembly of Shareholders approve these consolidated financial statements taking
into consideration the possible effects of what is mentioned in paragraphs (1-2) and
the effects in paragraphs (3-4) in the “Basis of Qualified Opinion” paragraphs, and
the emphasis of matters paragraphs as mentioned gbove.

Amman - Jordan Deloi rﬁclﬁ(ﬂid

March 27, 2018
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JORDAN PETROLEUM REFINERY COMPANY
{A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year Ended

December 31,

Profit for the year

Items that can not be reclassified subsequently to the consolidated

statement of income:

Change in fair value reserve

Total Consolidated Comprehensive Income for the Year

Total Consolidated Comprehensive Income Attributable to:

Company's shareholders

Non -controlling interests

2017 2016
) D
32,927,297 34,066,432
(454,664) {137,379)
32,472,633 33,929,053
32,200,107 33,611,665
272,526 317,388
32,472,633 33,929,053

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND

WITH THE ACCOMPANYING AUDITOR'S REPORT.
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For the Year Ended

December 31,
Note 2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: p o] 1o
Profit before tax 39,181,460 46,080,055
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment 10&11 21,664,142 23,375,315
Intangible assets amortization 12 3,000,000 3,000,000
Settiernent of targeted income with the Government - surplus 26 81,194,195 155,039,632
{Recovery) provislon for staff end-of-service indemnity 18 25,291 36,708
Provision for gas cylinders with specifications unauthaorized to be used 14 - 129,477
{Recovery) pravision for employees' vacations - Net (25,166) {225,746)
{Recovery) provision for legal compensation 14/G {2,590,680)
Provision (recovery) from other provisions 46,192 (418,718}
Work Injuries claims provision 264,682 301,168
(Recovery) from lawsuits provision - Net = (15,648)
Slow-moving and obsoclete inventory provision 7 660,724 2,655,890
Provision (recovery) from provision for doubtful debts [} 945,755 {33,453 503
Net Cash. Flows from Operating Activitles before Changes in Working Capltal i 144,366,545 196,504,330
{Increase) in accounts receivable and other debit balances (13,658,861} {67,049,130)
(Increase) In crude ol, finished ol products, and supplies (97,408,460) (17,687,578)
{Decrease) In due to death, end-of-service indemnity, and compensation fund {395,203} (B,608,665)
(Decrease) In accounts payable and other credit balances (80,990,015} (10,965,106)
Net Cash Flows {used In} from Operating Activities before Income
Tax and Provisions Paid {48,085,994) 92,193,851
Income tax paid 17 {8,663,595) (7,681,614)
Staff end-of-service indemnity paid 18 - {125,051)
Net Cash Flows {used in) from Operating Actlvities {56,749,589) 84,387,186
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
{Acquisition} of property and aquipment - net {41,004,541) {20,091,696)
Paid to Ministry of Energy for marketing license {4,280,000) (4,280,000)
Projects under construction - net {3,757,896) {10,067,820)
(Acquisitlon) of financlal assets at fair value through comprehensive income (1,283) -
Payments to acquire investments after change in non-cantrolfing Interests - net 4,866,013 3,135,805
Net Cash Flows (used in) Investing Activities (44,177,707) {31,303,711)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase (decrease) in due to banks 108,626,290 {42,234,010)
Increase (decrease) In finance lease obligations 8,583,293 (189,416}
Dividends distributed to shareholders (20,000,000) (7,236,153}
Net Cash Flows from {used In) Financing Activities 97,209,583 {49,659,579)
Net (Decrease} Increase in Cash (3,717,713) 3,423,836
Cash on hand and at banks - baginning of the year 14,805,465 11,381,569
Cash on Hand and at Banks - End of the Year 5 11,087,752 14,805,465
Non-cash transactions:
Increase in capital through capitatizing retained earnings - 25,000,000

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING AUDITOR'S REPORT.
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JORDAN PETROLEUM REFINERY COMPANY

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY})
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General
The Company was established on July 8, 1956, with a capital of JD 4 million,
which was increased in stages, with the latest being on April 28, 2016, the date
on which it was approved, in the Company’s extraordinary meeting, to capitalize
JD 25 million and distribute it to the shareholders. As a result, the Company's
authorized and paid-up capital has reached JD 100 million.

Added to the main units of refining and producing hydrocarbon petroleum
products, the Company owns two subsidiary factories for the production of lube-
oils and asphalt drums in addition to Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing
Company. Moreover, the process of repairing gas cylinders is conducted in a
special workshop to reduce the cost of writing off the cylinders. Further, the
accompanying consolidated financial statements include the operations of the
main refining units, factories, and directly and indirectly owned subsidiaries.

Besides the refining and production of hydrocarbon products, the Company
transports and distributes these products to some customers, who receive
supplies directly from the Company, as well as markets lube-oils. In addition,
Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company supplies its stations with
petroleum products and maintains them kingdom-wide.

According to the settlement agreement with the Jordanian Government, dated
February 25, 2008, concerning the termination of the concession, the Company
has to segregate some of its activities through establishing new companies it
wholly or partially owns - after the expiry date of the concession agreement on
March 2, 2008. During the year-ended December 31, 2008, the Company
established two subsidiaries companies wholly owned by Jordan Petroleum
Refinery Company (JPRC), namely: Jordan Liquefied Petroleum Gas
Manufacturing and Filling Company, and Jordan Lube Oil Manufacturing
Company, in order to split the activities of producing Lube Oil and filling gas.
However, none of these companies has conducted any commercial activities
yet, and JPRC is still in the process of segregating its other activities. Through
that the stand - alone financial statements for these two companies has been
audited since the establishment to the end of the financial year on December
31, 2015. During the year 2013, the Company established Jordan Petroleum
Products Marketing Company which is wholly owned by JPRC.

Although the ended concession settlement agreement between Jordan
Petroleum Refinery Company and the government on February 25, 2008 the
agreement included that Jordan Petroleum Refinery will keep a part of
distributing activities (one of the licensed distributing companies with a share
not less than 25 % of the market) subject to all conditions and terms that is
applied for other distributing companies, the agreement stated that the assets
of this Company shall include the gas stations owned by Jordan Petroleum
Refinery which has the right to split, own and sell these stations to the
distributing companies in addition the Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company Is
the owner of the tanks and the pumps has the right to sell them to the
distribution Companies, moreover, it included that the government owns some
entities (storage area and loading in Agaba and properties within the Jordanian
airports, Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company was involved as a partner then it
has been agreed that the government will be the sole owner for these assets in
accordance to the meeting held on September 2012) Keeping the remaining
ownership for the property, plant and equipment by Jordan Petroleum Refinery
Company and the Company established Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing
Company that started its operations in May 2013 which transferred the
distribution activities to this company. Accordingly, the distribution activities
and the gas stations were transferred to this company.
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The Board of Directors approved the accompanying consolidated financial
statements in their meeting held on March 25, 2018, and these consolidated
financial statements are subject to the approval of the General Assembly of
Shareholders.

2. The Concession Agreement
a. The concession agreement between the Company and the government expired

on March 2, 2008. Consequently, the Company signed a settlement agreement
with the Jordanian Government on February 25, 2008, concerning the expiry
of the concession, which was approved by the Company's General Assembly in
its extraordinary meeting dated March 22, 2008. Moreover, the financial effect
of some items in this agreement has not been determined nor reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Additionally, a final settlement has not been
reached regarding the provision for doubtful debts and provision for slow-
moving and spoiled inventory. The recoveries from these two provisions’
balances outstanding as of the concession expiry date should be credited to the
Government.

According to Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company’'s Board of Directors'
resolution No. 132/2009 dated November 15, 2009, His Excellency the Minister
of Finance's Letter No. {18/4/25741) dated November 15, 2009 was approved
for the settlement of the outstanding financial issues between the Company
and both the Ministry of Finance and Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources
on the following bases:

o

Through the petroleum derivatives pricing mechanism, annual profit from
refining and distribution activities of JD 7.5 million after tax will be achieved
while maintaining the change in the Company’s expenses at normal rates.

2. The Lube-0il Factory income shall be excluded from the profit referred to in
item (1) above provided that it is subject to income tax.

3. The Company shall be granted an amount of 10 cents/barrel from the surplus
realized by the Government as an additional income from refining the Iraqi
crude oil. This consideration is calculated based on the quantity of the barrels
received by the Company provided that this income is subjected to income tax.

4. An agreement shall be made between the Government’s representatives and
the Chairman of the Audit Committee, ensuing from the Company's Board of
Directors, concerning any new provisions or the increase in the outstanding
provisions. These provisions shall be reviewed quarterly.

According to the resolution of the Prime Ministry, in its meeting held on
November 24, 2009, the above items have been approved for settling the
financial relationship between the Government and Jordan Petroleum Refinery
Company.

According to the Prime Ministry's Letter No. 31/17/5/6014 dated March 24,
2010 and the Ministry of Energy and Minerat Resources’ Letter No. 6/5/1/1439
dated March 29, 2010, it was approved to extend the above agreement until
the year 2010.

b. The Company calculated the profit for the year ended December 31, 2017 and
for the years 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 according to the resolution of
the Council of Ministers, in its meeting held on September 13, 2012, which was
stated in the Prime Minister's Letter No. 31/17/5/24694 dated September 17,
2012, and approved by the Company’s General Assembly, in its extraordinary
meeting held on November 8, 2012. This includes the foliowing:
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Through the oil derivatives pricing mechanism, annual net profit of JD 15 million
after tax is to be achieved for Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company while
keeping changes the Company’s expenses at normal rates. Otherwise, the
government should be consuited and coordinated concerning any deviations
from these rates.

The Government has the right to appoint an external auditor (public
accountant) to audit the Company’s records for the purposes determined by
the Government.

Income from the marketing company owned by Jordan Petroleum Refinery
Company, and any other income from other future companies owned by it and
operating according to licenses issued by the Ministry of Energy and Mineral
Resources or the industry legislator, shall be excluded from the profit
mentioned above, provided their the financial statements or accounts are
separated.

The Lube-0il Factory income shall be excluded from the profit referred to
above, provided that the Lube-Qil Factory will be charged with the related fixed
and variable costs whether directly or indirectly as long as the financial
statements or accounts are separated.

The liquefied gas income shall be excluded from the profit referred to above,
provided that the financial statements or accounts are separated.

The profit granted to Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company of 10 cents/barrel
from refining the Iragi crude oll is also excluded from the above profit provided
that this income is subject to income tax.

The current or future financial statements shal! not be charged with any prior
years' provisions or expenditures, except for the committed provisions or
expenditures (provisions and employees’ rights, provision for doubtful debts,
provision for replacing gas cylinders, provision for lawsuits raised against the
Company, provision for slow-moving and spoiled inventory, provision for self-
insurance, etc.), provided that these provisions and financial statements are
audited by the Government.

All the above points apply to the year 2011, and up to the end of the transitional
period of 5 years, starting from the commencement of operations date of the
marketing companies on September 1, 2012, Moreover, Jordan Petroleum
Products Marketing Company started its operations on May 1, 2013.

The difference between the calculated income using this method and the
calculated income on a commercial basis is included in the Ministry of Finance’s
account, while the difference in calculated income for the year ended December
31,2017 and for the years, 2016, 2015, 2014, 2013 and 2012 is recorded in
the provision profits’ settlement with the Government. Moreover, the liquefied
gas profit was not excluded from the profits stated in point (5) above, as no
agreement with the Government has been reached yet regarding the
commissicn on filling the gas cylinders, which covers costs and generates profit
from this activity. The related negotiations with the Government are still
ongoing in preparation for this activity and for excluding its profit from the
refining profit.

3. _ Significant Accounting Policles

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statemen
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and related interpretations,

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Jordanian Dinar.

-13 -



- The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the historical cost principle except for financial assets and financial liabilities,
which are stated at fair value at the date of the consolidated financial
statements.

- The accounting policies adopted for the current year are consistent with those
applied in the year ended December 31, 2016 except for the effect of the
adoption of the new and modified standards mentioned in Note (4.a).

The following are the most significant accounting policies:

a. __Basis of Consolidation of the Financial Statements

- The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company, its subsidiaries, and entities under its control. Moreover, control is
achieved when the Company has the ability to control the financial and
operating policies of the subsidiary company to obtain benefits from its
activities.

- Transactions, balances, revenues, and expenses between the Company and its
subsidiaries are eliminated except those that have impact on the settlement
with the government.

- The company wiil re-evaluate its control on the subsidiary company if the facts
and circumstances include changes to the above menticned control elements.

= When the voting rights of the Company are less than the majority rights of the
investee Company-as the Company has authority over the investee company
when it has sufficient voting rights granting it the ability to direct the investee-
related activities from one-side-the Company considers all the relevant facts
and circumstances when performing an evaluation of whether the owned voting
rights are enough to give it authority over the investee company or not. This
includes the following:

- The size of the Company's voting rights compared to others’ and their
distribution.

- The probable voting rights owned by the Company.

- Rights arising from any other contractual arrangements.

- Any indications or circumstances pointing to whether the Company is
currently capable/incapable of directing its related activities the decision
must be taken. This includes voting patterns in the shareholders’ previous
meetings.

Changes in the Company’s ownership and its current subsidiaries:

- Changes in owners’ equity of the Company and its subsidiary which do not lead
to loss of the Company’s control over its subsidiaries are considered as stock
transactions. The book value of the Company’s shares will be adjusted to reflect
the changes in its shares in the subsidiary companies. Any difference between
the value, which non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the amount paid or received is directly stated in owners’ equity and will be
attributed to the Company’s shareholders.

When the Company loses control over a subsidiary, profit and loss will be
recorded in the income statement and calculated on the basis of the difference
between (1) the total of fair value the consideration received and the fair value
of any remaining shares, and (2) the previous book value of assets (goodwill
included), subsidiary’s liabilities, and any non-controlling interests. All
previously recognized amounts wil! be included in the other comprehensive
income statement related to the subsidiary company as if it had directly
disposed of the subsidiary-related assets or liabilities (i.e. reclassified to the
income statement or transferred to another category within owners’ equity as
stated or authorized in the prevailing International Financial Reporting
Standards). Moreover, the fair value of the investment kept by the prior
subsidiary company on the date of the loss of control is considered as the fair
value upon preliminary registration to be accounted for later as per
International Accounting Reporting Standard (9), or, as deemed appropriate,
the cost upon preliminary registration of the investment in an associate or joint
venture.
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Transactions, balances, revenues and expenses between the Company and its
subsidiaries are eliminated, except of the transactions that have an effect on
the financial relationship with the Government,

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies are prepared for the same
fiscal year of the Company adopting the same accounting policies of the
Company. If the accounting policies adopted by the subsidiary differ from those
adopted by the Company, the necessary adjustments to the subsidiary
company's financial statements are made so that its accounting policies match
those of the Company.

The result of subsidiaries company's operation will be consolidated in the
consolidated income statements from the date of acquisition which is the date
that the control effectively moved to the company over the subsidiary company,
the result of subsidiaries company’s operation which has been disposed will be
consolidated in the consolidated incomes statement up to the date of disposal
which is the date that the company loses control over the subsidiaries.

The company owns directly and indirectly the following subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2017

Investment
Batance as of

Authorized December 31,
Company's Name Capital Ownership 2017 Location Establishment Date Note
s} % vl
Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company
(pald 100%}) (1) 55,000,000 100 55,000,000 Amman February 12, 2013 Operating
Jordan Liquefied Petroleum Gas Manufacturing
and Fitliing Company {paid 50%} {2} 4,000,000 100 2,000,000 Amman May 28, 2008 Non-operating
Jordan Lube - Gl Manufacturing Company
(patd 50%) (2) 3,000,000 100 1,500,000 Amman May 28, 2008 Non-operating
Al-Markzeya Fue! Trade Station Company
(pald 100%) (2) 10,000 89 5,376,120 Amman May 28, 2014 Operating
Nuzha and Istiklal Fuel and Ol Station Company Operating
{pald 100%) (2) 5,000 60 2,403,000  Amman January 8, 2014
Al-Karak Central Fuel Station Company {paid 50%) {(2) 5,000 60 779,070 Al Karak November 26, 2014 Operating
Al-Xhairat Fuel Station Company (paid 100%) {2) 5,000 60 437,079 Al Karak November 11, 2014 Operating
Rawaby Al-Quelrah Fuel and Ol Station Company
{pald 50%) (2) 5,000 60 1,062,940 Al Agaba June 22, 2015 Operating
At-Aon for marketing and Distribution Fuel products
Company (paid 100%) (2) 1,005,000 60 603,000 Amman January 10, 2016 Operating
Qaws Al-Nasser managing Fuel Stations Company Non-operating -
{paid 100%) {2) 3,000 60 721,800 Irbld December 29, 2014 under renovation
Al-Tarig Al-Da‘ani for fuel Company (pald 50%) (2) 5,000 60 969,993 Amman June 10, 2015 Operating
Al-Muneirah Station for Fuel and Qll Company Non-operating -
{100%:) (2) 5,000 60 390,600 Armman November &, 2014 under renovation
Al-Ramah Modern Station Fuel Company Non-operating -
{100% paid) {2) 5,000 60 183,000 Amman December 17, 2014 under renovation
Nan-operating -
Al-Wadi Al-A'ablad Gas statlon {50% paid) {2) 5.000 60 542,562 Amman August 4, 2015 under rengvation
Al Kamel Gas Station {pald 50%) (2) 5,000 60 1,188,017 Amman February 26, 2017 Operating
Non-operating -
Al Qastal Gas Station (pald 50%) (2) 5,000 60 255,702 Amman June 19, 2017 under renovation
Non-operating -
Al Shira’ Gas Station (Paid 50%) (2) 5,000 95 2,375 Ammeman February 19, 2017 under renovation
Non-operating -
Taj Amon Gas Station (paid 50%) [2) 5,000 60 4,062,144 Amman September 20, 2017 under renovatlon
Jordanlan German Gas stations Company
{paid 100%) (2) 125,000 6% 911,972 Amman October 8, 2015 Operating
Non- cperating -
Al-Tanmwieh Al-A'ola Gas Statlons {pald 50%) (2) 5,000 60 246,912 Amman November 19, 2014 under rengvation
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(1)

Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company was established on February
12, 2013 with total assets, along with its subslidiaries of JD 239,648,870, while
its total liabilities and those of its subsidiaries amounted to JD 139,393,314 as
of December 31, 2017. The Company'’s consolidated net income amounted to
JD 9,386,224 with a non-controlling interest amounted to JD 272,526 for the
year-ended December 31, 2017. Furthermore, the Company has started
operating gradually since May 1, 2013, and part of the Jordan Petroleum
Refinery Company’s assets have been transferred to the Company at their net
book value. Also, some employees were assigned from Jordan Petroleum
Refinery Company to work at the Company.

The task of providing consumers with oil derivatives has been transferred to
the Jordan Petroleum Product Marketing Company; however, this task had been
completed as of December 31, 2017 except for electricity company’s
governmental institutions, security agencies, some airlines agencies, stations
and airports still obtain their supplies directly from Jordan Petroleum Refinery
Company. The required legal procedures to conclude the transfer of the
ownership of the assets to Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company were
completed during the year 2017 as follows:

1- Land and buildings: The value of land and buildings with a cost of JD
4,903,283 was transferred to Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing
Company according to their book values; however, their title has not been
transferred yet. The net book value of these assets is JD 4,183,956 as of
May 1, 2013. During the year 2017, these assets were completely
transferred to Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company.

2- Vehicles: The value of vehicles costing JD 5,483,410 was transferred to
Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company according to their book
value; however, their title has not been transferred yet. Moreover, the net
book value of these assets is JD 109,881 as of the May 1, 2013. These
assets were completely transferred to Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing
Company. During the year 2015, these assets were completely transferred
to Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company.

3- Other property and equipment: Other property and equipment costing 1D
4,460,927 were transferred to Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing
Company at their book value during the year 2013; the net book value of
these assets is JD 1,446,738.

4- Employees and their benefits: The contracts of Jordan Petroleum Refinery
Company’s employees were not transferred to Jordan Petroleum Products
Marketing Company.

During the year 2017, Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company increased the
authorized and paid-up capital of Jordan Petroleum Product Marketing
Company to become JD 55 million. The Company completed the legal
procedures with the related authorities.

5- Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company receives a marketing
commission of 12 fils per liter sold, plus a commission on the retail sale of
petroleum products of 15 fils for each liter sold, in addition to other
commissions related to the evaporation allowance, according to the
agreement signed with the Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources.
Furthermore, sale and distribution of petroleum derivatives to governmental
customers, electrical companies, and some aviation companies are
conducted directly through Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company.
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The following are the significant accounting policies adopted:

Inventory

The crude oil and finished products inventory price is stated according to the
net realizable value or cost, whichever is lower. Cost is determined according
to the weighted-average method.

Finished and-under process products at the subsidiaries lube-oil and cylinders
factories are stated at cost, using the weighted-average method or net
realizable value, whichever is lower,

Raw materials, spare parts and supplies are stated at cost, using the weighted-
average method or net realizable value, whichever is lower. A provision is taken
for the slow-moving inventory.

Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income
These financial assets represent investments in equity instruments for the
purpose of keeping them for the long term.

These assets are recognized at fair value plus acquisition expenses at the time
of purchase. They are subsequently re-evaluated at fair value; and the change
in fair value is presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
Income within owners’ equity, including the change in the fair value from the
translation differences of non-cash assets denominated in foreign currencies.
In case of selling these assets or part therefrom, the resultant gains or losses
are taken to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within
consolidated owners’' equity. Moreover, the fair value reserve balance of the
sold equity instruments is to be transferred directly to retained earnings, and
not through the consolidated income statement.

Dividends are taken to the consolidated statement of income.

Fair Value

The closing price (purchase of assets / sale of liabilities) at the date of the
financial statements in active markets represents the fair value of the financial
instruments and derivatives that have market prices.

In case declared market prices do not exist, active trading of some financial
assets and derivatives is not available, or the market is inactive, fair value is
estimated by one of several methods including the following:

- Comparison with the present market value of a very similar financial
instrument.

- Analysis of future cash flows and expected discounted cash flows at a rate
used for a similar financial instrument.

- Adoption of options pricing models,

- The long-term non-interest bearing assets and liabilities are evaluated
according to discounted cash flows at the effective interest rate.
Moreover, the discounted interest revenue is recorded under received
interest income in the consolidated statement of income,

The evaluation methods aim at obtaining a fair value that reflects market
expectations and considers market factors and any expected risks or benefits
upon valuing financial instruments.

Impairment in Financial Assets

The Company’'s management reviews the values of financial assets recorded at
the date of the consolidated statement of financial position in order to
determine if there are any indications of impairment in their value individually
or in the form of a portfolio. In case such Indication exists, the recoverable
value is estimated so as to determine the impairment joss.
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Accounts receivable are stated at net realizable value. Moreover, a provision for
doubtful debts and late repayments is booked according to management’s
estimates of the recoverable amounts.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
other impairments, and are depreciated (except for land) when ready for use,
according to the straight-line method over their expected useful lives at annual
rates as follows:

%

Buildings 2-10
Machinery and production equipment 35
Machinery and support services equipment 35
Tanks and pipelines 10
Electrical supplies and eguipment 20
Products loading units 20
Vehicles 15
Office furniture and fixtures 5-20
Library and training equipment 20
Distribution stations assets 20
Property and other equipment 20
Computers 35

When the recoverable amount of any property and equipment becomes less
than its net book value, its value is reduced to the recoverable amount, and the
impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement of income.

The useful lives of property and equipment are revalued at the end of each year.
If the revaluation differs from previous estimates, the change is recorded in
subsequent years, being a change in estimate.

Property and equipment are eliminated when disposed of or when no future
benefits are expected from their use or disposal.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are stated at cost and classified on the basis of either definite
or Iindefinite useful life. Intangible assets with definite useful lives are amortized
over their estimated lives at an annual rate of 10%, and any indications of
impairment in the value of intangible assets as of the financial statements date
are reviewed. Furthermore, the estimated useful lives of the impaired intangible
assets are reassessed, and any amendments are made in the subsequent
period.

Any indications to impairment in intangible assets are reviewed at the financial
statements date. Furthermore, any indications of impairment in the value of
intangible assets as of the financial statements date are reviewed, and so are
ageing estimates of these assets. Meanwhile, any related impairment is taken
to the statement of income,

No intangible assets from the Company’s operations are capitalized. Instead,
they are rather recorded as an expense in the statement of income for the year.,

Goodwill:

Goodwill is recognized at cost, which represents the excess amount paid to
acquire or purchase cash-generating units owned by other companies over the
Company’s share in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of these units at the acquisition date.
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Goodwill is recognized as an intangible asset at cost, and subsequently, reduced
by any impairment losses.

Goodwill is distributed over the cash-generating unit(s) for the purpose of
testing the impairment in its value.

In case the cash-generating units are sold, goodwill value is considered upon
determining the amount of profit or loss resulting from the selling transaction.

Financial Lease Contracts:

Leases are classified as a financial lease whenever the lessor transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Assets held under a
financial lease are recognized as the Company’s assets and are recognized at
the lower of fair value of the assets or the present value of the minimum lease
payments discounted. Moreover, the corresponding liability to the lessor Is
included in the statement of financial position as a financial lease obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between financial charges and a reduction of
the lease obligation so as toc produce a constant discount rate on the remaining
balance of the liability. Financial lease charges are recognized in the income
statement. Furthermore, financial lease contracts result in depreciation
expenses and borrowing costs for every accounting period. Depreciation rates
of the leased assets are calculated on the same basis of the owned assets,

Investment Property:

Investment properties, (except for land) are stated at cost net of accumulated
depreciation. These investments are depreciated based on their useful life, and
any impairment is charged to the income statement. Moreover, revenues and
operating expenses for these investments are recognized in the income
statement.

Taxes:

A provision for Income tax is taken through estimating the expected tax
liabilities. Moreover, the realized differences in income tax are recorded in the
consolidated statement of income when paid upon reaching a final settlement
with the Income Tax Department.

Deferred taxes are expected to be paid or recovered due to temporary timing
differences between the value of the assets or liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the value on the basis of which tax is calculated.
Furthermore, deferred taxes are calculated using the liability method in the
consolidated statement of financial position according to the tax rates expected
to be applied at the time of tax liability settlement or the recognition of the
deferred tax assets.

On the consolidated financial statements date, the balance of deferred tax
assets and liabilities is reviewed and reduced in case it is expected that the
Company would not benefit in whole or in part from the deferred tax assets, or
the tax liability is settled or no longer needed.

Revenue
Revenue from fuel sales is recognized upon delivery to the customer and
issuance of the invoice.

Interest is charged to the consolidated statement of income according to the
accrual basls.

Other income is recognized according to the accrual basis.
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Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Jordanian Dinars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Assets and {labilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Jordanian Dinars at the
average exchange rates published by the Central Bank of Jordan at year-end.
The resulting exchange gains or losses are recorded in the consolidated
statement of income.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has liabilities at the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position arising from previous events,
settlement of these liabilities is probable, and their value can be reliably
measured.

A provision for slow-moving, idle, and spoiled goods is taken based on technical
studies performed by the Company's specialized committees.

A provision for end-of-service indemnity is booked, for any legal or contractual
obligations related to end-of-service indemnity, death and disability at the end
of the employees' services, according to the accumulated service terms at the
date of the consolidated statement of financial position and the Company's
internal regulations.

Accounting Estimates

Preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements and
application of the accounting polices require from the Company's management
to estimate and assess some items affecting assats and liabilities and to disclose
contingent liabilities. These estimates and assumptions also affect revenue,
expenses, provisions, and changes in the fair value within the statement of
comprehensive income and owners’ equity and require from the Company's
management to estimate and assess the amounts and timing of future cash
flows. The aforementioned estimates and assumptions are based on multiple
factors with varying degrees of assessment and uncertainty. Moreover, the
actual results may differ from the estimates due to the changes resulting from
the conditions and circumstances of those estimates in the future.

We believe that the estimates in the consolidated financial statements are
reasonable. The details are as follows:

A provision for doubtful debts, slow-moving and spoiled inventory items is
taken on the basis and estimates approved by management for calculating the
provision to be booked in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

Income tax expense for the year is accounted for in accordance with the laws,
regulations, and International Financial Reporting Standards.

Management periodically reassess the economic useful lives of tangible and
intangible assets for the purpose of calculating annual depreciation and
amortization based on the general condition of these assets and the assessment
of their expected useful economic lives in the future. Impairment loss is charged
to the consolidated statement of income.

A provision for cylinders expected to be scrapped and replaced in the future is
taken on the basis and assumptions approved by the Company's management
according to International Financial Reporting Standards and oil derivatives
pricing mechanism in Jordan,

A provision is booked for any legal or contractual obligations related to the end-
of-service indemnity, death and disability according to the Company's internal
regulations.
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- A provision for lawsuits raised against the Company is taken based on a legal
study prepared by the Company’s legal consultants. According to the study,
probable future risks are identified; the study is reviewed periodically.

- Fair value hierarchy: The Company is required to determine and disclose the
level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorized in their entirety, segregating fair value measurements in
accordance with the levels defined in IFRSs. Differentiating between Level (2)
and Level (3) fair value measurements, i.e., assessing whether inputs are
observable and whether the unobservable inputs are significant, may require
judgment and a careful analysis of the inputs used to measure fair value,
including consideration of factors specific to the asset or liability.

4. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)

a. New and revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the consglidated
financial statements
The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods

heginning on or after January 1, 2017, have been adopted in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendm AS 12 Income Taxes R nition of ferred Tax
A for Unreali S

The Company has applied these amendments for the first time in the current
year. The amendments clarify how an entity should evaluate whether there will
be sufficient future taxable profits against which It can utilise a deductible
temporary difference.

The application of these amendments has had no impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements,

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Company has applied these amendments for the first time in the current
year. The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of the consolidated financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

The Company's liabilities arising from balances due to banks (note 13) and
certain other finance lease (note 16). A reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of these items Is provided. Consistent with the transition
provisions of the amendments, the Company has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior period. Apart from the additional disclosure in (note
16), the application of these amendments has had no impact on the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle -
Amendmen 0 IFRS 12

The Company has applied the amendments to IFRS 12 Included in the Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle for the first time in the current year.
The other amendments included in this package are not yet mandatorily
effective and they have not been early adopted by the Group (see note 4- b).

IFRS 12 states that an entity need not provide surmmarized financial information
for interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures that are classified (or
included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale. The amendments
clarify that this is the only concession from the disclosure requirements of IFRS
12 for such interests.

The application of these amendments has had no effect on the Company's
consolidated financial statements as none of the Group’s interests in these
entities are classified, or included in a disposal group that is classified, as held
for sale.
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b. New and revised IFRS in issue but not vet effective

The Company has not yet applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 ~ 2016 Cycle amending
IFRS 1 and IAS 28

The improvements include the amendments on IFRS 1 and IAS 28 and they are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017

The improvements include the amendments on IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and
IAS 23 and they are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2018.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of
transactions where:

+ there is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign
currency;

= the entity recognizes a prepayment asset or a deferred income fiability
in respect of that consideration, in advance of the recognition of the
related asset, expense or income; and

+ the prepayment asset or deferred income liability is non-monetary.

The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2018,

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax loss),
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there
is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. It specifically
considers:

Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively;
Assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations;

* The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and

* The effect of changes in facts and circumstances.

The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2019.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share Based Payment

The amendments are related to classification and measurement of share based
payment transactions and they are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2018,

Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

The amendments relating to the different effective dates of IFRS 9 and the
forthcoming new insurance contracts standard and they are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.
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Amendments to IAS 40 Investment Property

Paragraph 57 has been amended to state that an entity shall transfer a property to,
or from, investment property when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in
use. A change of use occurs if property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property. A change in management'’s intentions for the use of a property
by itself does not constitute evidence of a change in use. The paragraph has been
amended to state that the list of examples therein is non-exhaustive.

The Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018.

Amendments to IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments are related to long-term Interests in associates and joint ventures.
These amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to long-
term interests in an associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment
in the associate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2019,

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognize, measure, present and disclose
leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to
recognize assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or
less or the underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as
operating or finance, with IFRS 16's approach to lessor accounting substantially
unchanged from Its predecessor, IAS 17.

The Company will apply IFRS 16 in the effective date which is the annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2019 The Company is in the process of evaluating
the impact of IFRS 16 on the Company's consolidated financial statements,

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendments are related to prepayment features with negative compensation,
This amends the existing requirements in IFRS 9 regarding termination rights in order
to allow measurement at amortized cost (or, depending on the business model, at
fair value through other comprehensive income) even in the case of negative
compensation payments.

The Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2019,

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (revised versions in 2009, 2010, 2013 and
2014)

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was subsequently
amended in October 2010 to include requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in November 2013
to include the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised
version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

A finalized version of IFRS 9 which contains accounting requirements for financial

instruments, replacing IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. The standard contains requirements in the following areas:
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« Classification and measurement: Financial assets are classified by
reference to the business model within which they are held and their
contractual cash flow characteristics. The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces a
'fair value through other comprehensive income' category for certain debt
instruments, Financial liabilities are classified in a similar manner to under 1AS
39, however there are differences in the requirements applying to the
measurement of an entity's own credit risk.

« Impairment: The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces an 'expected credit loss'
model for the measurement of the impairment of financial assets, so it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before a credit loss is
recognized

« Hedge accounting: Introduces a new hedge accounting model that is
desighed to be more closely alighed with how entities undertake risk
management activities when hedging financial and non-financial risk
exposures,

+ Derecognition: The requirements for the derecognition of financial assets
and liabilities are carried forward from IAS 39,

The Company adopted IFRS 9 (phase 1) that was issued in 2009 related to
classification and measurement financial assets, the company will adopt the finalised
version of IFRS 9 from the effective date of January 1, 2018; apply it retrospectively
and recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as of January 1, 2018.

The Company is continuing to analyze the impact of the changes and currently does
not consider it likely to have 2 major impact on its adoption. This assessment is based
on currently available information and is subject to changes that may arise when the
Company presents its first financial statements as on December31, 2018 that includes
the effects of it application from the effective date,

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which established a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
IFRS 15 wiil supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18
Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract,

Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer, Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by IFRS 15,
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IFRS 15 may be adopted retrospectively, by restating comparatives and adjusting
retained earnings at the beginning of the earliest comparative period. — Alternatively,
IFRS 15 may be adopted as of the application date on January 1, 2018, by adjusting
retained earnings at the beginning of the first reporting year (the cumulative effect
approach).

The Company intends to adopt the standard using the cumulative effect approach,
which means that the Company will recognize the cumulative effect of initially
applying this standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
of the annual reporting period that includes the date of Initial application. The
Company is continuing to analyze the impact of the changes and its impact will be
disclosed in the first consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2018 that
includes the effects of it application from the effective date.

Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The amendments are to clarify three aspects of the standard (identifying performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, and licensing) and to provide some
transition relief for modified contracts and compieted contracts.

The Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
The amendments are related to disclosures about the initial application of IFRS 9.
The Amendments are effective when IFRS 9 is first applied

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The amendments are related to the additional hedge accounting disclosures (and
consequential amendments) resulting from the introduction of the hedge accounting
chapter in IFRS 9. The Amendments are effective when IFRS 9 is first applied

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 requires insurance liabllities to be measured at a current fulfillment value
and provides a more uniform measurement and presentation approach for all
insurance contracts. These requirements are designed to achieve the goal of a
consistent, principle-based accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS 17 supersedes
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts as of January 1, 2021.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011)

The amendments are related to the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets
from and investor to its associate or joint venture,

The Amendments effective date deferred indefinitely and the adoption is still
permitted.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments
will be adopted in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as and when they
are applicable and adoption of these new standards, interpretations and
amendments, except for IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 as highlighted in previous
paragraphs, may have no material impact on the financial statements of the Company
in the period of Initial application.

Management anticipates that IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 wiil be adopted In the Company's
financial statements for the annual period beginning January 1, 2018 and that IFRS
16 will be adopted in the Company’s financial statements for the annual period
beginning January 1, 2019.



5. Cash on Hand and at Banks

This item consists of the following:

Cash on hand
Current accounts at banks

6. Accounts Receivable and Other Debit Balances

This item consists of the following:

Governmental institutions and departments and
Security agencies {a)

Fuel, electricity Companies, and transportation
clients (b)

Alia Company - Royal Jordanian Airlines (c)

Total receivables

Ministry of Finance (d)

National Electric Power Company- Borrowing cost (e)

Checks under collection (f)

Advance payment on stamp duties, fuel imports
fees, jet fuel and strategic inventory fees (g)

General sales tax deposits (h)

Special sales deposits tax on oil derivatives

Other debit balances (i)

Employees recelvables

Advances against staff end-of-service Indemnity

Letters of credit deposits and purchase orders -
Subsidiary company

Prepaid expenses (j}

Less: Provision for doubtful debts (k)

December 31,

2017 2016
D 1D
847,803 2,283,263
10,239,949 12,522,202
11,087,752 14,805,465

December 31,

2017 2016
D 1D

327,328,494 288,101,844
119,154,441 93,181,892
46,850,302 68,885,103
493,333,237 450,168,839
158,819,906 187,865,728
79,200,000 79,200,000
30,312,078 36,760,132
= 3,505,279
99,966,658 93,804,801
- 2,726,619
2,803,302 3,489,285
1,415,003 1,264,943
22,215 42,405
595,839 385,425
9,382,332 4,100,604
875,850,570 863,314,060
(12,993,853) (13,170,449)
862,856,717 850,143,611

This item includes receivables against governmental departments’ and security
agencies’ fuel withdrawals amounting to JD 289,757,496 for the refinery and
gas activities, JD 4,164,970 for the oil activity, and JD 33,406,028 for the
Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company as of December 31, 2017.

The Company adopts a policy of dealing with only creditworthy counterparties
as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The following

are the accounts receivable due but not impaired:

December 31,

2017 2016
D 1D
1 day -~ 119 days 134,165,688 97,726,486
120 days - 179 days 12,284,506 12,657,422
180 days - 365 days 28,968,999 16,717,054
More than a year* 317,914,044 323,067,877
Totali 493,333,237 450,168,839

- The Company studies the aging of the receivables and the sufficiency of the
booked provision at the end of each financial period.
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This balance includes receivables from governmental parties or guaranteed by
government due for more than a year with a total amount of JD 285,016,492.
In management'’s opinion, the Company is able to collect these receivables, and
there is no need to book a provision related to them. The balance also includes
amounts due from the partners of some subsidiaries of JD 1,663,168, due for
more than one year. In management's opinion, there is no need to book an
additional provision as the Company signed agreements with those parties to
have them pay the amounts due through directly transferring any profits they
generate to the Company and are also guaranteed by real estate collaterais.

This item represents amounts due from the electrical distribution and
generation companies for fuel consumption amounted to JD 42,398,388 as of
December 31, 2017 (ID 26,777,972 as of December 31, 2016).

On March 6, 2016, the Company signed a settlement agreement with Alia
Company - Royal Jordanian Airlines (RJ) to collect the outstanding receivables,
according to this agreement R) paid 10% of the outstanding balance during
March 2016, the remaining amount shall be paid through 60 monthly
installments. The first installment was due on March 31, 2016, and the last one
will be due on February 28, 2021, with an interest of % 4.4. Moreover, Alia
Company- Royal Jordanian Airlines should pay all subsequent invoices at the
due date. Accordingly, the Company did not book any additional provisions for
R] receivable. The Ministry of Finance informed the Company through its letter
number 18/4/15391 dated June 26, 2016 that the Company should reverse the
booked provision for Alia Company - Royal Jordanian Airlines since RJ is
complying with all agreement terms. Alia Company — Royal Jordanian Airlines
should pay their monthly withdrawals in accordance to the signed agreement
as March 2016, Consequently the Company reversed the booked provision for
Alia amounted to JD 31 million in the year 2016. In case Alia did not comply
with this agreement the Company shouid rebulid the allowance for doubtful
debts against their dues.

In accordance with the Council of Minsters’ Decision No. (11131) dated August
16, 2015, a quantity discount according to the consumption segments was
granted to the jet fuel consumers on the jet fuel-selling price determined by
the monthly fuel pricing committee starting from August 1, 2015 until
December 31, 2016, and the said price will be calculated on a yearly basis.
Moreover, Decision No. (293) dated October 23, 2016 was issued by the Prime
Ministry modifying the quantities discount segments for the jet fuel consumers
effective from October 31, 2016. Subsequently, the Prime Ministry issued
Decision No. (1958) dated February 26, 2017, approving the retroactive
amendment to the effective date of the quantities discount of the
aforementioned Decision No. (293) starting from August 1, 2015 instead of
October 31, 2016. Accordingly, the discount due to Alia Company-Rayal
Jordanian Airlines for the period from August 1, 2015 until July 31, 2017
amounted to JD 29,947,993.

According to the Board of Directors’ Decision No. 1/2/5, in its Meeting No.
1/2018 held on March 12, 2018, the Company decreased the receivable balance
of Alia Company - Royal Jordanian Airlines by JD 15,523,797 during the year
2017. The remaining part of the receivable balance is to be deducted from the
fuel withdrawals of Alia Company after deducting any due unpaid invoices
starting from the agreement singing date until 31 July 2018. Moreaver, the
discount due from August 1, 2017 until the discount expiry date determined by
the Prime Ministry is to be accounted for by reducing Alia Company's
receivables by 40% and its monthly consumption by 60%. If the government
agreement is terminated, the discount will be calculated until 30 April, 2018 at
the same rates mentioned above, and the Prime Ministry’s decision will be
applied after that date apart from the Jordan Petroleum Refinery. According to
the Prime Ministry’s Decision No. (4141), in its meeting held on August 20,
2017, extension of the discount granted to the Royal Jordanian Airlines
Company for another year was approved based on the aforementioned quantity
discount segments effective from 31 October 2017.
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Pursuant to the Prime Ministry’s Decision No. (5614), in its meeting held on 17
December 2017, the interest rate imposed on the debt owed by Alia Company-
Royal Jordanian Airlines to Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company is to be
reduced from being 4.4% on December 20, 2016 and currently at 3.8% to
0.5%. Accordingly, the interest for the years 2015 and 2016 to date is to be
reversed in the form of a future balance so that the resulting financial impact
will be settled within the financial relationship between the Ministry of Finance
and Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company.

According to the Prime Ministry’s Decision No. (1958), in its meeting held on
February 26, 2017, it was approved to charge the discount granted to Alia
Company directly to the Ministry of Finance’s account without impacting the
Company’s revenues.

The Ministry of Finance’s balance inciudes JD 181,724,846 related to the
refinery and gas activities and JD (22,904,940) related to the Jordan Petroleum
Products Marketing Company as of December 31, 2017.

In accordance with the Council of Ministers’ Decision No, {15605), in its meeting
held on May 29, 2016, the Company debited the account of National Electric
Power Company with 1D 79.2 million in leu of the interest expense it incurred
on Its borrowings on behalf of the National Electric Power Company. In return,
the Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company shall transfer the said amount from
the National Electric Power Company to the Ministry of Finance. In accordance
with the meeting of the Financial Relations Committee with the Jordan
Patroleum Refinery Company on 18 August 2016, it was emphasized that the
amount of JD 79.2 million, representing part of the actual interest incurred by
the Company as a result of the actual borrowing, should be recorded in a
separate account within accounts payable and other credit balances as
collaterals. A counter amount equivalent to these collaterals shall be recorded
as a receivable due from the National Electric Power Company within
receivables and other debit balances. This amount wiil be transferred to the
Ministry of Finance when the National Electric Power Company pays It without
affecting the financial relationship with the Government.

The maturity date of checks under collection of JD 181,669 for the Refinery and
Gas activities extends up to January 4, 2018. Moreover, the maturity date of
the checks of the Lube-Qil Factory of JD 2,945,621 extends up to March 25,
2018. In addition, the maturity date of the checks of the Jordan Petroleum
Products Marketing Company of JD 27,184,788 extends up to February 28,
2019,

This item represents advance payments for fuel stamps duties, fuel import fees,
jet fuel fees, and strategic inventory fees to the Ministry of Finance and for
supporting the Treasury included in the Import Parity Prices (IPP) Bulletin.
Furthermore, the Company settled all amounts due to the Government during
the year 2016, in addition to the balance of JD 141 million due from the
Company for the year 2015 Note (14).

General sales tax deposits include 1D 99,941,432 related to Refinery and Gas
activities and JD 25,226 related to the Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing
Company.

This item mainly consists of the current account of the employees’ housing fund
in addition to advance payment for the Jordanian Customs Department,.

This item mainly represents prepald expenses related to Insurance, rent,
marketing, security and safety fees, and prepayments to contractors for
establishing gas stations, and it includes an amount of JD 3,897,343 for the
Refinery and Gas acfivities and JD 5,484,989 for the Jordan Petroleum Products
Marketing Company.
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k. The movement on the provision for doubtful debts is as follows:

2017 2016
D D
Balance - beginning of the year 13,170,449 46,950,861
(Recovered) provision for the year 945,755 (33,453,803)
Written-off during the year* (1,122,351) (326,609)
Balance - End of the Year 12,993,853 13,170,449

E During the year, the Company wrote off the receivable due from the Central
Electricity Generating Company (CEGCO) pursuant to Decision No. 5-2-101 of
the Company’'s Board of Directors in its meeting No. (11/2017) heid on
December 31, 2017. This receivable represents the pricing differences arising
from the fluctuations in the prices of petroleum derivatives in accordance with
the Import Parity Prices (IPP) Bulletin during the downloading of diesel and fuel
oil tankers in the years 2008 and 2009.

- Provision for doubtful debt includes JD 8,619,977 as of December 31, 2017 (JD
10,823,761 as of December 31, 2016) for the Refinery and Gas activities, JD
1,100,384 as of December 31, 2017 (JD 900,665 as of December 31, 2016) for
Oil activity, and JD 3,273,492 as of December 31, 2017 (ID 1,446,023 as of
December 31, 2016) for the Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company.

Z. rude Oil, Finished Oil Products, and Supplies
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2017 2016

D D
Finished petroleum products and lube oil 149,867,399 83,078,784
Crude oil and materials under process 46,311,935 34,569,802

Raw materials, spare parts, and other

supplies 73,953,762 62,016,272
Goods in transit 67,374,585 60,754,645
Provision for slow-moving items* (20,638,343) (20,297,901)

316,869,338 220,121,602

e The movement on the provision for obsolete and slow-moving items is as follows:

2017 2016
D D
Balance - beginning of the year 20,297,901 17,654,341
Provision during the year 660,724 2,655,890
Less: inventory written-off * (320,282) (12,330)
Balance - End of the Year 20,638,343 20,297,901

*  During the years 2017 and 20186, it was approved to write-off obsolete and slow-
moving items representing spare parts and spoiled unusable items.



8, Deferred Tax Assets

This Itern consists of the following:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Transferred to

the Statement Deferred Tax

Balance - Balance - of Income Assets as of
Beglnning of Amounts End of Deferred During the December 31,
Description the Year Additions __ Released the Year Taxes Year - Net 2016
o Jo o o o iin) D

Provision for t;!oubtful debts 13,170,449 945,755 (1,122,351) 12,993,853 2,015,549 84,924 1,930,625
Gas cylinders replacement provision 10,000,000 3,829,150 (3,829,150) 10,000,000 1,400,000 - 1,400,000
Pravision for employees vacations 2,334,015 241,152 (266,318} 2,308,849 323,239 {3,523) 326,762
Provision for staff end-of-service Indemnity 62,633 25,241 - 87,874 12,302 3,533 8,769
Pravision for siow-moving and spoiled items 20,297,901 660,724 (320,282) 20,638,343 2,889,368 47,662 2,841,706
Provlsion for lawsults and other liabilitles 5,760,050 286,426 _(3,596,811) 2,449,665 342,953 {463,455) 806,408

31,625,048 5988488 (9,134,952) 48,478,584 6,983,411 !330!85% 7,314,270

= The future benefits of deferred tax assets were caiculated at rates of 14% for refinery, gas and oll factory and 20% for the Jordan Petroleum

Products Marketing Company and its substdiaries as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.
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9, _ Financial Assets at Fair Value through Comprehensive Income
This item consists of the following:

December 31,
Number of Number of
Shares 2017 Shares 2016
Listed Shares: D o
Jordan Electricity Company 692,402 1,225,552 692,402 1,560,072
Arab Potash Company 47,300 797,004 47,300 907,214
Safwa Islamic Bank 256,516 312,950 256,516 328,340
Jordan Paper and Cardboard Factories Company 33,300 11,655 33,300 8,991
Public Mining Company 12,500 67,250 12,500 71,250
Palestine Development and Investment Company 28,060 29,884 28,060 23,092
Al Motarabita Investment Company 128,259 1,283 - -
2,445,578 2,898,959
10. Investment Property - Net
This item consists of the following:
r r En D 1 {ands Buildings Equipment Total
Cost: o D b i[>}
Balance - beginning of the year 1,054,479 312,588 99,938 1,467,005
Internal transfers to property and equipment
account- net (432,457) {52,056) - (484,513)
Balance - End of the Year 622,022 260,532 99,938 982,492
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance - beginning of the year - 39,480 40,160 79,640
Depreciation and impairment - 7,143 39,324 46,467
Balance - End of the Year - 46,623 79,484 126,107
Net Book Value as of December 31, 2017 622,022 213,909 20,454 856,385
Annual Depreclation Rate % - 2-10 35
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 Lands Buildings Equipment Total

Cost: D D 10 1D

Balance - beginning of the year 943,279 689,031 100,400 1,732,710
Internal transfers to property and equipment
account- net 111,200 (376,443) {462) (265,705}
Balance - End of the Year 1,054,479 312,588 99,938 1,467,005
Depreci
Balance - beginning of the year S 26,181 20,080 46,261
Depreciation and impairment - 13,299 20,080 33,379
Balance - End of the Year - 39,480 40,160 79,640
Net Book Value as of December 31, 2016 1,054,479 273,108 59,778 1,387,365
Annual Depreciation Rate % B 2-10 35

This item represents rented stores and leased car wash within the stations as well as
the value of the land. These assets are held by the subsidiary companies of the
Jordan Refinery Marketing Company (subsidiary company). The details are as
follows:

2017 2016

b JD
Nuzha and Istiklal Fuel Staticn Company 856,385 370,733
Al-Markzeya Fuel Trade Station Company - 925,156
Rawaby Al-Qwirah Fuel and Oil Station Company - 91,476
856,385 1,387,365
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12. Intangible Assets - Net
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2017 2016

JD 1D
Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing License* 16,000,000 19,000,000
Goodwill** 960,000 960,000

16,960,000 19,960,000

* According to the resolution of the Council of Ministers, in their letter No.
58/11/1/26041 dated September 30, 2012, it was agreed to grant Jordan
Petroleum Products Marketing Company (subsidiary) a license for operating and
distributing petroleum products. The value of the license was determined to be
JD 30 million. Moreover, the Company is required to pay a first installment and
settle the remaining balance in five equal annual installments. The Company
will amortize the intangible assets over 10 vyears, starting from the
commencement date of its operations on May 1, 2013, based on the renewable
agreement signed with the Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources on
February 19, 2013, The movement on intangible assets is as follows:

2017 2016
1D 1D
Balance - beginning of the year 19,000,000 22,000,000
(Amortization) of intangible assets (3,000,000) (3,000,000)

16,000,000 19,000,000

**  This item represents goodwill from acquiring 60% shares of Nuzha and Istiqglal
Gas Station Company valuation differences. The recoverable amount has been
determined by calculating the expected cash flows to be generated to the
Company based on a 10-year budget approved by the Company. Moreover, the
expected cash flows for the years after 2014 were determined, using a growth
rate of 4% for revenues and a growth rate of 2.5% for expenses. In
management’s opinion, the used growth rates for revenues and expenses are
reasonable in light of the company’s business nature as well as the overall
growth of this sector in Jordan, The company agreed to use a discount rate of
10% for the expected cash flows with an internal rate of return of 15%.

13. Due to Bank
This item represents an overdraft current account, maturing during a year,

granted by several local banks to finance the Company's activities, at interest
rates ranging from 2.75 % to 6.3 % during the year 2017 against the
Company's guarantee. It includes amount of JD 580,255,572 for the Refinery
and Gas activities, JD 23,530,663 for the Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing
Company as of December 31, 2017
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14. Accounts Payable and Other Credit Balances
This item consists of the following:

Deposits of surplus from differences of oil derivatives pricing (a)

General sales taxes on oll derivatives deposits (b)

Special sales taxes on oil derivatives deposits (b)

Provisions for constructing alternative fuel tanks (c)

Suppliers and obligations drafts and purchase orders

Provision for replacing gas cylinders (d)

Stamp duties, fuel imports fees, jet fuel and strategic inventory fees (e)

Provision for occupational accidents indemnity

Provision for lawsuits and other obligations (Note 31/b)

Advance payment from customers (f)

Shareholders withholdings

Ships penalty provisions

Creditors and other credit balances

Retention deducted from contractors

Provision for legal compensation {(g)

Provision for penalty income tax delay payments (g)

Liabilities against interests related to of National Electric Power Company
for withholdings to the Ministry of Finance {Note 6 - )

Employees’ vacation provision

Subsidiary Companies’ import pricing differences (h)

Alia company- Royal Jordanian Airlines discount deposit (Note 6 - ¢)

Alla company- Royal Jordanian Airlines interest deposit (Note 6 - ¢)

December 31,

2017 2016
D D

46,775,893 79,278,291
— 1,605,056
7,254,201 6,753,423
93,500,103 94,457,951
170,868,924 167,769,982
10,000,000 10,000,000
13,401,290 a
3,483,273 3,218,592
2,449,665 5,760,050
6,379,958 7,431,502
9,973,873 6,943,221
46,192 12,287
18,931,969 16,965,716
512,139 1,085,180
- 4,338,146
e 1,897,939
79,200,000 79,200,000
2,308,850 2,334,015
6,291,478 1,463,471
14,424,196 S
2,884,553 o
488,686,557 490,514,822

a.  This item includes amounts from gas cylinders pricing and oil derivatives pricing
differences between total cost-including taxes, fees, transportation charges,
and actual selling prices-and the rounding-up of fractions differences effective
from March 2, 2008. These differences are considered as the Government’s
right according to the Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources’ Letter No.
9/4/1/719 dated February 16, 2009, and the Ministry of Finance’s Letter No.
18/4/9952 dated April 29, 2009. Consequently, the Company was obliged,
effective from March, 2008, to record the results of the rounding-up of prices
in favor of the Ministry of Finance. Additionally, the Government has claimed
the differences In the pricing of oll derivatives effective from December 14,
2008, according to the resolution of the Petroleum Derivatives Pricing
Committee, in its meeting held on December 13, 2008, provided that the
pricing surplus is recorded as a refundable deposit under liabilities within the
consolidated financial statements of the Company. Deposits of surplus from
differences of oil derivatives pricing includes amount of JD 43,617,760 for the
refinery and gas activities, JD 3,158,133 for the Jordan Petroleum Products

Marketing Company as of December 31, 2017.

- The movement on the refundable differences arising from pricing derivatives

and surpluses is as follows:

2017 2016
JD JD
Balance - beginning of the year 79,278,291 76,092,572
Pricing differences of oil derivatives 3,734,789
during the year 9,505,112

Paid during the year

(36,237,187)

(6,319,793)

Balance - End of the Year

46,775,893

79,278,291
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During the year 2010, the pricing mechanism of oil derivatives, according to
international prices, included special sales tax on oil derivatives at 6% of the
refinery gate price excluding Fuel Oil, Afture, and Afkaz . Moreover, the special
sales tax on unleaded gasoline (both types) was raised, as stated in the pricing
mechanism of oil derivatives letter dated June 18, 2010, to become between
18% and 24%. includes amount of JD 867,279 for the Refinery and Gas
activities, JD 6,386,922 for the Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company.

According to the resolution of the Prime Ministry, in its letter No. 12/11/4/2439
dated on February 7, 2008, it was agreed to apply a general sales tax on
unleaded gasoline as follows starting from February 8, 2008:

To adjust the exemption on unleaded gasoline Octane 90, according to Article
(22/c) of the General Sales Tax Law No. (6) for the Year 1994 and its
amendments, to become 12% subject to a general sales tax rate of 4%.

To cancel the exemption on unieaded Gasoline Octane 95, according to Article
(22/c) of the General Sales Tax Law mentioned above, and subject to general
tax at a rate of 16%.

According to the resolution of the Council of Ministers, in its meeting held on
January 11, 2011, it was decided to exempt diesel and kerosene from the
special sales tax, and decrease the special tax on unleaded gasoline Octane
(90), to become 12% Instead of 18% effective from January 12, 2011.

According to the Council of Ministers, in its meeting held on May 24, 2017,
based on Article No. (149/c) from the Customs Law No. (20) for the year 1998,
it was agreed to extend the exemption from customs duties for all the
Company’s refining imports Except for mineral oils and their inputs and any
other materials from January 1, 2017 until May 01, 2018 according to the Prime
Minister decision No. 3059 on May 29, 2017. Also The Council of Ministers also
decided in its meeting held on January 7 ,2016 and based on the provision No.
149 / C of the Customs Law No. 20 for the year 1998 and provision 3 / B of the
public funds' exemption law from No. 28 for the year 2006 approved to exempt
the quantities of dlesel and gasoiine octane 95 imported by the marketing
companies from the customs duties (the unified fee) from January 1,2016 until
December 2017 under the Prime Minister's Decision No. 983 dated December
11, 2016.

According to the Ministry of Finance, in its meeting held on May 24, 2017, based
on Article No. (149/c) from the Customs Law No. (20) for the year 1998, it was
agreed to exempt alli Company's refining imports Except for mineral oils and
their inputs and any other materials from customs duties (the unified fee) from
January 1, 2017 until May 1, 2018, The company obtained the approval from
the Ministry of Finance - Customs Department to waive the legalization on the
required documents (invoice and the certificate of origin), based on Article No.
(2/f) of Instructions No. 2 for the year 1999, and-according to the Ministry of
Finance-Customs Department’s Letter No. 108/7/20/32295 dated July 2, 2017.

The Council of Ministers decided in its meeting held on April 9, 2017 to approve
to include the crude oil and petroleum derivatives in Table 2 attached to the
General Sales Tax Law which relates to sales and services subject to General
Sales Tax by (zero) effective 12 February 2017 Except for both types gasoline,

The Council of Ministers approved, in its meeting held on January 3, 2016
decision No. 13363, based on the recommendations of the Economic
Development Committee dated on December 22, 2015, to exempt the
Company, from general and special sales tax effective the first of May 2013 on
exclusively imported quantities sold to the marketing companies, provided that
the general and sales tax thereon has been paid by those companies within the
pricing structure of IPP.
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According to His Excellency the Prime Minister’s Letter No, 58/11/1/5930 dated
March 24, 2010, an amount of JD (34) per ton was added to the price of
unleaded gasoline (both types) within the pricing mechanism of oil derivatives
starting from April 16, 2010. Moreover, the related proceeds are recorded in a
special account maintained by the Company for the Government, represented
by the Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources, to build tanks for the storage
of crude oil and/ or fuel oil derivatives at an average of (70) thousand tons in
Agaba. starting December 1, 2016, the Company stopped adding this fees
according to IPP.

The movement of provisions for constructing alternative fuel tanks is as
follows:

2017 2016
b D
Balance - beginning of the year 94,457,951 96,975,272
The booked provisions for constructing alternative
tanks during the year & 12,343,893
Paid during the year (957,848) (14,861,214)
Balance - End of the Year * 93,500,103 94,457,951

This balance represents deposits for constructing alternative fuel tanks fully
due on the refinery activities. In this respect, the Jordan Petroleum Products
Marketing Company settled the due amount in full during the year 2017.
Moreover, this item was discontinued starting from December 1, 2016
according to the fuel derivatives pricing bulletin (IPP).

The movement on the provision for replacing gas cylinders is as follows:

2017 2016
D D

Balance - beginning of the year 10,000,000 17,536,307

Add: Provision for the year * 3,829,190 3,774,141
Provision for gas cylinders with specifications

unauthorized to be used ** - 129,477

Less: Released during the year * (3,829,150) (3,774,141)

Reversed during the year ** . (7,665,784)

Balance - End of the Year 10,000,000 10,000,000

During the year ended December 31, 2017, a provision of 1D 3,829,190 was
booked for the disposal and repair of cylinders, in accordance with IFP
amounting to JD 10 for each sold ton of gas. The number of gas cylinders sold
during year 2017 around to 30.5 million cylinders.

The Board of Directors approved, in their meeting No. 1/2016 dated February
8, 2016, to reverse an amount of JD 19,370,614 for the year 2015, based on
the Company’s meeting with the Ministry of Finance dated December 12,
2015, to reconcile the previous financial relationship. As such, it was agreed
for the Company to keep a portion of the gas cylinders’ replacement provision
for an amount not exceeding JD 10 million, furthermore, during the year
ended on December 31, 2017 the Company reversed JD 3,829,190 against
the cost of writing off and fixing the cylinders during the year in order to
maintain the balance of JD 10 million as agreed with the Ministry of Finance.

This item represents the cost of the Indian gas cylinders rejected by the
Jordan Institution for Standards and Metrology during the year 2013.
Consequently, Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company filed a lawsuit at the
Supreme Court to rescind the decision, but the lawsuit was rejected by the
Supreme Court during the first half of the year 2014. The expense shown
represents flooring and professional fees paid to the official authorities in
Agaba. Additionally, these amounts were capitalized in the purchase order of
the Indian gas cylinders after deducting the performance guarantee of USD
670 thousand, confiscated by the Company.
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In accordance with the Council of Ministers letter number 31/17/5/21025 which
is related to the opinion of Legislation and Opinion Bureau, That Jordan
Petroleum Refinery Company is responsible of the costs of the Indian cylinders
rejected by the Jordan Institution for Standards and Metrology, accordingly
Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company sent a letter number 2/25/25/7/1741
dated on February 14, 2017 to his Excellency Minister of Finance which states
that the cost of the cylinders that have been incurred by the Company up to
December 31, 2016 is amounted to JD 7,665,784 and the net realizable value
of these cylinders Is amounted to JD 1,331,250 therefore the net losses is
amounted to JD 6,334,534, and if the Company book these losses in 2016 this
will decrease the targeted/guaranteed profit in an amount of JD 5,067,628 as
of the year ended December 31, 2016 which will result in a negative sequences
on the Company position in the financlal market, based on the above, the
Council of Ministers approved in its letter number 31/17/5/14/14153 dated on
March 28, 2017 to deferred and amortize the loss of the Indian cylinders
amounted to JD 6,334,534 over five years starting from the year 2016 with an
amount of 1D 1,266,907 which has been decreased from the targeted profit for
the Company which is JD 15 million, accordingly the net targeted profit for the
year became 1D 13,733,093 on 2016. During the year 2017 the Company
amortized 1D 1,266,907 in the statement of income for Refinery and Gas
Cylinders filling representing the portion for the year of the installments period
and postponed the amortization of the remaining amount of 1D 3,800,721 in
order to be amortized during the subsequent 3 year period. During 2017, the
Company deferred the recognition of losses related to the cost of the Indian
cylinders rejected by the Jordan Institution for Standards and Metrology
Organization plus storage fees, based on the targeted profit equation. The
International Financial Reporting Standards requires the whole amount to be
deducted when incurred without deferral, The Company’s records indicate that,
had management recognized the losses when incurred without deferral during
2016 the net income and shareholders’ equity would have been reduced by an
amount of 1D 5,067,628 instead of 10 1,266,907 as of December 31, 2016 and
profit for the year ended December 31, 2017 would have been increased by 1D
1,266,907,

This item represents fuel import stamps fees, aircraft fuel fees, and the
consideration for the Ministry of Finance’s strategic stock included in the (IPP)

list.

The movement of Provisions for constructing alternative fuel tanks is as follows:

2017 2016
JD D
Balance - beginning of the year - Note (&) * (3,505,279) 141,273,184
Recovered during the year 16,906,569 16,485,234
Paid during the year - (157,758,418)
Balance - End of the Year 13,401,290 -

During year 2016 this balance become an advance payment in an amount of
1D 3,505,279 (as mentioned in Note 6 - Accounts Receivable and Other debit
balances).

This item represents payments received in advance from the fuel and gas
customers to purchase oil derivatives.



g. The Income and Sales Tax Department has reviewed and issued its final
decision for the years 2011, 2012 and 2013. On May 10, 2015, the Department
informed the Company of the review, which resuited in extra tax of 1D
15,618,205. Moreover, the Company has requested the Prime Minister to
exempt the Company from income tax differences, and legal compensations
and fines, as these taxes resulted from taking loans exceeding the accepted
rate of loans to capital, as per the Income Tax Law. Such loans are taken to
insure that the electricity-generating companies have sufficient quantities of
diesel and oil to compensate the shortage in the Egyptian gas. Furthermore,
the Councit of Ministers approved, in its meeting held on January 3, 2016, to
exempt the Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company from income tax differences,
legal compensations, and fines for the years 2011, 2012 and 2013.
Consequently, the Company took a provision for the income tax differences for
the year 2014, as this year has not been included in the decision for exemption
of JD 5,422,683, provision for legal compensation for the year 2014 of JD
4,338,146, and a provision for delay payments (0.004)} of JD 1,897,939, to
meet any probable future tax liabilities until the Income Tax Department
reviews the year 2014. The Income and Sales Tax Department presented the
final and final tax assessment for 2014, The company was informed on July 2,
2017 as a result of the company's tax audit. Additional taxes were imposed at
a value of JD 7,838,578 and a legal compensation amounted to 1D 6,270,866
was Imposed on the above tax differentials. The provision for tax differentials
was increased to )JD 7,838,578 and the provision for legal compensation
Increased to become JD 6,270,866 and an increase in the provision for delay
of payment of 0.004 to become ID 2,743,502 for the period ended on
September 30, 2017. The Company filed an objection at the Income and Sales
Tax Department because these amounts resulted from the Company's
borrowing amounts exceeding to the capital amount of the company in
accordance with the income tax law and sales and the reason for borrowing is
to secure the needs of power generation companies with diesel and fuel oll in
light of cutting out the Egyptian gas.

The final and irrevocable decision was issued on November 6, 2017 under the
Notification Instrument of the Ministry of Finance/Income and Sales Tax
Department. The decision prescribed reducing tax differences to JD 6,531,687
and legal compensation to JD 250,311. Accordingly, the Company paid the
amounts as per the Notification Instrument in addition to a delay penalty of JD
2,286,090 at a rate of (.004). Moreover, the Company recorded the difference
of JD 2,590,680 in the consolidated statement of income for the year ended

December 31, 2017.

h.  This item represents import pricing differences between the cost of imported
oil derivatives during the year 2016 and 2017 and the prices of IPP related to
Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company (Subsidiary Company). The
Company booked this difference in the export pricing difference account
included in the accounts payable and other credit balances account since there
is uncertainty whether this balance is a right for the Company or the Ministry

of Finance.

15. Fees Pa le to the Minist
Company (Subsidiary)

of Ener

for Jordan Petroleum Pr

ucts Marketin

This item represents fees accrued to the Ministry of Energy for obtaining the
license to market and distribute petroleum products. The Company paid 1D
4,280,000 during the year, and the remaining amount will be paid in
instalments, as per the licensing agreement. Below are the details of this item:

December 31,

Accrued fees for the Ministry of Energy - current portion
Accrued fees for the Ministry of Energy - non-current

portion

2017 2016
D D
4,280,000 4,280,000
- 4,280,000
4,280,000 8,560,000

38 -



Finance L Obligation — Non-Current Portion

During the year 2015, the Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company
(subsidiary) signed a financial lease agreement to purchase cars of JD
1,340,000. The ensuing obligations will be paid over 72 installments of JD
23,192, including interest. The first payment was due on August 15, 2015, and
last payment is due on July 15, 2021.

During the year 2017, the Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company
(subsidiary) signed a financial lease agreement to purchase cars of JD 36,706.
The ensuing obligations will be paid over 73 Installments of JD 580, including
interest. The first payment was due on June 11, 2017, and last payment Is due
on May 1, 2023.

During the year 2017, the Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company
(subsidiary) signed a financial lease agreement to purchase cars of JD 37,121.
The ensuing obligations will be paid over 71 installments of JD 580, including
interest. The first payment was due on August 10, 2017, and last payment is
due on May 1, 2023.

During the year 2017, the Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company
(subsidiary) signed a financial lease agreement to purchase cars of JD 895,000,
The ensuing obligations will be paid over 72 installments of JD 15,259, including
interest. The first payment was due on August 10, 2017, and last payment is
due on July 1, 2023.

During the year 2017, the Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company
(subsidiary) signed a financial lease agreement to purchase cars of JD 317,500.
The ensuing obligations will be paid over 72 installments of ID 5,411, including
interest, The first payment was due on October 24, 2017, and last payment is
due on September 1, 2023.

During the year 2017, the Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company
(subsidiary) signed a financial lease agreement to purchase cars of JD 37,121.
The ensuing obligations will be paid over 71 installments of JD 580, including
interest. The first payment was due on November 10, 2017, and last payment
Is due on September 1, 2023.

During the year 2017, the Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company
(subsidiary) signed a financial lease agreement to purchase land of 1D
5,000,000. The ensuing obligations will be paid over 58 installments of JD
80,000, including interest, The first payment was due on April 1, 2017, and last
payment is due on January 1, 2022,

During the year 2017, Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company
(subsidiary) signed a financlal lease agreement to purchase cars of 1D 37,121,
The ensuing obligations will be paid over 71 installments of JD 580, including
interest. The first payment was due on November 10, 2017, and last payment
is due on September 1, 2023.

During the year 2017, Taj Amoun for Fuel and Lube Oil Company (subsidiary)
signed a financial lease agreement to purchase land of JD 2,700,000. The
ensuing obligations will be paid over 60 Installments of JD 54,300, including
interest. The first payment was due on February 1, 2018, and last payment is
due on January 1, 2023,

During the year 2017, Al Shira’ for Fuel and Lube Oil (subsidiary) signed a
financial lease agreement to purchase land of 1D 500,000. The ensuing
obligations will be paid over 60 installments of JD 10,710, Including interest.
The first payment was due on April 1, 2017, and last payment is due on April
1, 2022,
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The details of finance lease obligations are as follows:

Minimum Finance Lease Present Value of Minimum

Payments Finance Lease Payments
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016 2017 2016
b D 1D D
Less than a year 2,287,344 278,304 1,657,779 204,193
More than a year 9,194,794 997,256 _ 8,001,279 871,572
11,482,138 1,275,560 9,659,058 = 1,075,765
Less: Future financing interest (1,823,080) (199,795) - -
Present Value of Minimum Finance
Lease Payments 9,659,058 1,075,765 9,659,058 1,075,765
Shown in the financial statements under:
Current Liabilities 1,657,779 204,193
Non-Current Liabilities 8,001,279 871,572
9,659,058 1,075,765
17. Provision for Income Tax
The movement on the provision for income tax is as follows:
2017 2016
D D
Provision for income tax - beginning of the year 7,610,320 8,742,948
Add: Income tax expense for the vear 5,923,303 4,176,729
Income tax expense for pervious years o 2,372,257
Less: Income tax paid (8,663,595) (7,681,614)
Provision for income tax - End of the Year 4,870,028 7,610,320

Income tax expense for the year shown in the consolidated statement of income

represents the following:

2017 2016
D D
Income tax for the year 5,923,303 4,176,729
Previous years tax < 2,372,257
Deferred tax assets for the year (393,451) (371,538)
Amortization of deferred tax assets for the year 724,311 5,836,175
6,254,163 12,013,623

- The Company has reached a final settlement with the Income and Sales Tax
Department up to the year 2014. Furthermore, the Company submitted its
income tax return for the year 2015, the income tax declarations were
submitted for the year 2016 and the declared income tax was paid and the
income and sales tax department did not audit the accounts to date. Meanwhile,
the income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2017 has been
calculated according to the Jordanian Income Tax Law. Management and the
tax consultant believe that the booked provisions are sufficient to meet any tax
obligations.

- Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company (subsidiary) submitted its tax
return for the period of establishment up to December 31, 2014. Moreover, the
tax returns were submitted for the year 2015, and the declared amount was
settled. In this respect, the Income and Sales Tax Department has reviewed
the Company's records but has not issued its final decision yet. In addition, the
tax returns for the year 2016 were submitted, and the declared tax was paid.
However, the Income and Sales Tax Department has not reviewed the
Company's accounts yet, Meanwhile, the income tax expense for the year ended
December 31, 2017 has been calculated according to the Jordanian Income Tax
Law. In the opinion of the Company's management and tax consultant, the
provisions taken in the consolidated financial statements are sufficient to meet
the tax obligations.
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The income tax declaration was submitted by all subsidiary companies of the
Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company up to year 2016 and the
declared income tax was paid and the companies are yet to be audited except
for Al Karak Gas Station for the year 2015. Moreover, the declaration was
approved for both Rawabi Al Gwaira and Nuzha and Istiklal Gas Stations for the
year 2016 unlike all other Companies. In the opinion of the Company's
management and tax consultant, the provision taken in the consolidated
financial statements are sufficient to meet the tax obligations.

The Income and Sales Tax Department has reviewed and issued its final
decision for the years 2011, 2012 and 2013. On May 10, 2015, the Department
informed the Company of the review, which resulted in extra tax of 1D
15,618,205. Moreover, the Company has requested the Prime Minister to
exempt the Company from income tax differences, and legal compensations
and fines, as these taxes resulted from taking loans exceeding the accepted
rate of loans to capital, as per the Income Tax Law. Such loans are taken to
insure that the electricity-generating companies have sufficient quantities of
diesel and oil to compensate the shortage in the Egyptian gas. Furthermore,
the Council of Ministers approved, in its meeting held on January 3, 2016, to
exempt the Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company from income tax differences,
legal compensations, and fines for the years 2011, 2012 and 2013.
Consequently, the Company took a provision for the income tax differences for
the year 2014, as this year has not been included in the decision for exemption
of JD 5,422,683, provision for legal compensation for the year 2014 of JD
4,338,146, and a provision for delay payments (0.004) of JD 1,897,939, to
meet any probable future tax liabilities until the Income Tax Department
reviews the year 2014, The Income and Sales Tax Department presented the
final and final tax assessment for 2014. The company was informed on July 2,
2017 as a result of the company's tax audit. Additional taxes were imposed at
a value of 1D 7,838,578 and a legal compensation amounted to JD 6,270,866
was imposed on the above tax differentials. The provision for tax differentials
was increased to JD 7,838,578 and the provision for legal compensation
increased to become JD 6,270,866 and an increase in the provision for delay of
payment of 0.004 to become JD 2,743,502 for the period ended on September
30, 2017. The Company filed an objection at the Income and Sales Tax
Department because these amounts resulted from the Company's borrowing
amounts exceeding to the capital amount of the company in accordance with
the income tax law and sales and the reason for borrowing is to secure the
needs of power generation companies with diesel and fuel oil in light of cutting
out the Egyptian gas.

The final decision was issued on November 6, 2017 by the Ministry of
Finance/Income and sales tax department which includes reducing the
differences amount to JD 6,531,687 and reducing the lega! obligation to 1D
250,311, in accordance with the decision the company paid a penaity of JD
2,286,090 at a rate of (.004) and recorded the difference of JD 2,590,680 in
the consolidated income statement for the year ended December 31, 2017.

The income tax rate is 14% for refinery and gas activities and oll factory and
20% for Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company and for its subsidiaries.



18. Provision for Staff End-of-Service Indemnity

The movement on the provision for staff end-of-service indemnity is as follows:

2017 2016
JD D
Balance - beginning of the year 62,633 150,976
Additions during the year 25,241 36,708
Paid during the year S (125,051)
Balance-End of the Year 87,874 62,633

This balance represents provision for end-of-service indemnity for employees
employed prior to the year 1980,

19. inistry of Finance - Fun of Strategic Invent

a. The concession agreement with the Government expired on March 2, 2008 and
the strategic inventory of the Ministry of Finance was valued at fair value as of
December 31, 2017 in accordance to the petroleum products price builetin IPP
that is set by the Prime Ministry and it amounted to JD 138,646,494 and is
shown under contra accounts section were recorded to off the financial position
items where the company keeps this inventory as deposits to the favor of the
Government.

20, ital and Reserves

A. _Capital
The General Assembly decided, in its extraordinary meeting held on April 29,
2015, to increase the Company's capital to JD 75 million through capitalizing
JD 12/5 million from retained earnings and distribute it as dividends at 20% of
paid-up capital. The official procedures for increasing paid-up capital were
completed on July 13, 2015.The Company’s General Assembly decided, In its
extraordinary meeting held on April 28, 2016, to capitalize and distribute JD 25
million to the shareholders. Consequently, the Company’s authorized and paid
up capital has become JD 100 million as of December 31, 2017.

B. Statutory Reserv
In accordance with Article (186) of the Companies Law No. (22) for the year

1997 and its amendments, the last of which was Law No. (17) for the year
2003, 10% of annual net income shall be allocated to the statutory reserve
every year. The allocation shall not be stopped before the total aliocated
amount is equivalent to one quarter of the Company’'s authorized capital.
However, upon approval of the General Assembly of the Company, this
allocation can continue until the statutory reserve equals the Company's
authorized and paid-up capital based on 10% of net income before tax
individually for the company and its subsidiaries.

C.  Voluntary Reserve

The amounts accumulated in the account represent what has been transferred
from annual net income before taxes at a rate of 20%. This reserve will be used
for the purpose approved by the Board of Directors. Moreover, the General
Assembly of Shareholders has the right to capitalize or distribute the whole
reserve or part thereof as dividends to shareholders, furthermore, the General
Assembly in its extraordinary meeting dated on April 27, 2017 to transfer an
amount of JD 7,318,705 from voluntary reserve to retained earnings.

D, F h Ex on_Reserve
The Company’s General Assembly decided on their meeting held on April 27,

2017 to record an amount of JD 7,318,706 to a special reserve account from
the retained earnings for the purpose of the fourth expansion. During the year
2017, the Company reversed 1D 4,665,788 from the special reserve for the
purpose of the fourth expansion representing 1D 2,743,547 as first payment of
25% from the preliminary design fees and the rest of the amount represents
stamp fees, consulting, and technical services related to the project.
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21, ir Value Reserve

This item represents the fair value reserve for the financial assets at fair value
through comprehensive income which resulted from assets revaluation at fair

value as of December 31, 2017.

22. _Retained Earnings

The General Assembly decided, in its ordinary and extraordinary meeting dated
April 29, 2015, to increase paid-up capital in order to become JD 75 million by
capitalizing JD 12/5 million from retained earnings and distribute it as free stock
at 20% of paid-up capital, which amounted to JD 62/5 million on the date of
distribution to become the authorized and paid up capital 75 million. The official
procedure of increasing pald-up capital was completed on July 13, 2015.

The Company’s General Assembly decided in its ordinary and extraordinary
meetings held on April 28, 2016 to capitalize JD 25,000,000 from retained
earnings to the paid and authorized capital to become JD 100 million and to
distribute them as free stock to the sharehoiders. Furthermore, in its ordinary
meeting held on April 27, 2017, the General Assembly approved the distribution
of cash dividends at a rate of 20% of paid capital, equivalent to JD 20 million

for the year 2016 profits.

23. Sales - Net

This item consists of the following:

Refinery and filling of gas cylinders
Lube-cil factory sales
Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing
Company’s sales
Less: Fuel derivative pricing bulletin fees
and taxes
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2017 2016
1D i[5)
1,178,323,427  1,342,002,992
28,613,664 32,750,498
879,633,622 603,891,310
(308,312,424)  (216,577,086)
1,778,258,289 _ 1,762,067,714




24, Coct of Sales
This item consists of the following:

Raw Materials;
Crude oil and materials under process - beginning of the year
Purchases of ccude oll and raw materials used In production

Crude oll and materiais under process - end of the year

Production Expenses:
Salaries and other employee benefits
Depreciation of property and equipment
Materials, spare parts and other supplies
Other manufacturing expenses

Total Manufacturing Expenses

Fuel and transportation expensa

Totat Production Cost

Add; Finished petroleum products and tube ol - beginning of the vear

Purchases of finished products during the year

Total Goods Avallable for Sale

less: Finlshed petroleum products and lube oll - end of the year

Subsidy of crude oil derivatives charged to the Ministry of

Finance account

Surplus in oif derivatives pricing to the Ministry of Finance acoount

2017 2016
Refinery and Sale and Marketing
Distribution Gas Lube Oil  ardan Petruleum Products
Cylinders Filling * __ Factory _ _Marketing Company Total Total
o p1o] pD) io s ]
34,458,691 111,111 = 34,569,802 27,728,881
856,068,687 12,403,787 c B68,472,474 720,721,662
(46,204,146) (107,789} - (46,311,935) {34,569,802)
844,323,232 12,407,109 = 856,730,341 713,880,741
23,128,190 1,267,325 2,460,839 26,856,354 30,284,454
11,407,670 241,050 1,809,01t 13,457,731 16,673,479
8,399,410 75,907 499,341 B,974,566 8,647,654
9,165,884 339,429 310,802 9,817,115 11,610,718
52,102,162 1,923,711 5,079,993 59,105,855 67,216,305
= = 5,687,293 5,687,293 3,921,729
896,425,194 14,330,820 10,767,286 921,523,500 785,018,775
72,112,556 1,096,267 9,869,961 83,078,784 86,203,435
194,381,555 - 572,755,053 767,136,608 725,549,914
1,162,919,505 15,427,087 593,392,200 1,771,738,892 1,596,772,124

(124,549,212) (783 79 (24,534,395) (149,867,399) {83,078,784)

(2,522,136)

9,505,112

1,038,370,293  _ 14,643,295 568,857,905  _ 1,621,671,493 __1,513.693,340
(35,865,860) . (799,787} {36,665,647)
576,656 - 3,158,133 3,734,789
1,003,081,089 14,643,295 571,216,251 __ 1,508,040,635

1,520,676,316

* The operations of the liquld gas were not separated from the refining and distribution operations as no agreement with the Government has been reached yet

regarding commissions on filling the gas cylinders,

= The average cost per crude oil barrel amounted to USD 53/31 for the year ended December 31, 2017 (USD 41/81 for the year ended 2016),



25. Operating and Other Income
This item consists of the following:

2017 2016
D 1D

Income from Ports Corporation * 1,380,000 1,200,000

Dividends shares income 84,888 139,534
Tanks rent, Income from marketing companies

evaporation, uploading and downloading ** 9,383,794 5,072,472

Delay interests 3,872,035 4,517,185

Unused provisions = 1,331,250

Other income 3,478,050 5,975,627

18,198,767 18,236,068

* This item represents fees due to Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company from
using the services of the Company's employees by the Ports Corporation during

the years 2017 and 2016, to assist in the work of Agaba ports.

**  This item represents tanks rent, evaporation, loading and downloading fees,
income from the marketing companies, as per the instructions of the Ministry
of Energy to these companies to make available the required operating stock

for their activities.

26. Settlement of Income with the Government

This item represents the difference of net income calculated as per the
agreement with the Council of Ministers on a commercial basis, and it is
recorded in the Ministry of Finance’s account for the years 2017 and 2016.
Moreover, the liquefied gas profit was not excluded from income, as no
agreement with the Government has been reached yet concerning the
commission on filling the gas cylinders, which covers costs and generates profit
from this activity. The related negotiations with the Government are still
ongoing in preparation of licensing this activity, and then excluding its profit

from the refining profit (Note 2).

2017 2016
D o}

Profit before tax and settlement for the year 120,375,655 201,119,684

Less: Lube Qil Factory income after tax 9,807,980 11,432,477
Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company's

income after tax 9,386,224 8,900,861

The Company’s targeted income after tax for the year 13,733,093 13,733,093

Income tax for the year * 6,254,163 9,641,364

Income tax for previous years = 2,372,257
Recorded for the Government's account to reach

81,194,195 155,039,632

targeted income

AR



* In accordance with the Council of Ministers letter number 31/17/5/21025%
which is related to the opinion of Legislation and Opinion Bureau, That Jordan
Petroleum Refinery Company is responsible of the costs of the Indian cylinders
rejected by the Jordan Institution for Standards and Metrology, accordingly
Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company sent a letter number 2/25/25/7/1741
dated on February 14, 2017 to his Excellency Minister of Finance which states
that the cost of the cylinders that have been incurred by the Company up to
December 31, 2016 is amounted to 1D 7,665,784 and the net realizable value
of these cylinders is amounted to JD 1,331,250 therefore the net losses is
amounted to JD 6,334,534, and if the Company book these losses in 2016
this will decrease the targeted/guaranteed profit in an amount of JD
5,067,628 as of the year ended December 31, 2016 which will result in a
negative sequences on the Company position in the financial market, based
on the above, the Council of Ministers approved in its letter number
31/17/5/14/14153 dated on March 28, 2017 to deferred and amortize the
loss of the Indian cylinders amounted to JD 6,334,534 over five years starting
from the year 2016 with an amount of JD 1,266,907 which has been
decreased from the targeted profit for the Company which is JD 15 million,
accordingly the net targeted profit for the year became JD 13,733,093 on
2016. During the year 2017, the Company amortized JD 1,266,907 in the
statement of income for Refinery and Gas Cylinders filling representing the
portion for the year of the installments period and postponed the amortization
of the remaining amount to JD 3,800,720 in order to be amortized during the
remaining 3 year period. During 2016, the Company deferred the recognition
of losses related to the cost of the Indian cylinders rejected by the Jordan
Institution for Standards and Metrology Organization plus storage fees, based
on the targeted profit equation. The International Financial Reporting
Standards requires the whole amount to be deducted when incurred without
deferral, The Company’s records indicate that, had management recognized
the losses when incurred without deferral during 2016 the net income and
shareholders’ equity would have been reduced by an amount of 1D 5,067,628
instead of JD 1,266,907 as of December 31, 2016 and profit for the year
ended December 31, 2017 would have been increased by 1D 1,266,907.

27. Selling and Distribution Expenses
This item consists of the following:

2017 2016
D b
Salaries and other employees’ benefits 22,082,176 22,679,392
Crude oil transportation fees 2,009,823 4,940,474
Company's contribution to the Death and
Disability Fund 2,023,689 4,581,487
Depreciation of property and equipment 7,316,256 5,813,121
Raw materials, spare parts, and other supplies 4,606,215 4,645,665
Insurance fees 438,902 386,227
Fees, taxes, and stamps 769,589 454,819
Security and safety 1,824,819 1,555,077
Rent 2,322,163 1,448,598
Qperational storage fees 1,183,771 1,413,608
Gas station management fees 845,765 417,414
Other selling and distributing expenses 5,471,259 3,257,534
50,894,427 51,593,416
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28. General and Administrative Expenses

This item consists of the following:

2017 2016
D b

Salaries and other employees’ benefits 6,538,900 5,802,843
Company's contribution to the death and

disability Fund 595,205 1,100,539
Donations and in-kind contributions 618,719 778,631
Postage and telephone 124,100 104,261
Stationery and printing 82,050 153,797
Depreciation of property and equipment 718,503 1,657,647
Staff end-of-service indemnity provision = 36,708
Technical and legal consultations 223,020 1,973,143
Advertisements 192,193 133,212
Maintenance and repairs 142,210 235,581
Rents 286,026 245,133
Vehicles expenses 279,758 71,997
Subscriptions 128,002 69,903
Insurance fees 89,177 147,671
Water and electricity 149,247 131,989
Professional fees 106,529 71,600
Fees, tax, and stamps 274,513 986,519
Interest - marketing company licensea* 263,279 345,998
Qther general and administrative expenses 1,666,801 1,126,440

12,488,232 15,173,612

* According to the signed operating agreement between Jordan Petroleum
Products Marketing Company and the Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources,
an interest of 2.5% is charged on the unpaid marketing license payable to the
Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources,

29. Earnin r Share for the Company’s Shareholder
Earnings per share for the Company’s shareholders are calculated by dividing
net income for the year attributable to the Company's shareholders by the
weighted-average number of shares during the year. It is calculated as follows:

2017 2016
D JD
Income for the year-shareholders 32,654,771 33,749,044
Weighted-average number of shares 100,000,000 100,000,000
Earnings per share - Basic 0.327 0.337
Earnings per share - Diluted 0.327 0.337

- The weighted-average number of shares for diluted earnings per share
for the year attributable to the Company’s shareholders is calculated
based on the number of authorized shares for the two years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016. Moreover, comparative figures were
recalculated based on the capital ratio after the increase through
distributing free shares/capitalization according to (IAS 33).
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30. Non-Controlling Interests
This item represents non-controlling interests’ shares of net owners’ equity in
the subsidiaries, The details are as follows:
December 31, 2017
Non- Non-
Non- controlling controlling
Controtling Share from Share from
Percentage Net Income Net Assels
Company % JD D
Nuzhah and Istiklal for Fuel and Oil Company 40 105,044 964,000
Al-Markazeya Fuel Trade Station Company 11 6,481 498,713
Al-Karak Central for Fuel Station Company 40 32,914 521,380
Al-Khairat Fuel Company 40 15,614 293,386
Rawaby Al-Qwirah Fuel and Ofl Station Company 40 50,045 710,627
Al-a'on for marketing and Distribution of Fuel products
Company 40 98,796 428,106
Qaws Al-Nasser for managing Fuel Stations Company 40 6,214 473,055
Al-Tariq Al-Da'ari for fuel Company 40 (22,961) 621,450
Al-Muneirah Statton for Fuel and Oil Company 40 (2,056) 256,289
Al-Ramah Modern Station for Fuel Company 40 (950) 119,010
Al-Wadi Al-A'ablad Gas station 40 (822) 359,809
Jordanian German for Gas staticns Company 40 (3,901) 601,920
Al-Tanmwieh Al-A'ola for Gas Stations 40 (1,743) 162,062
Al Kamel Gas Station 40 5,450 792,693
Al Shira’ Gas Statton 5 (702) (577)
Al Qastal Gas Statlon 40 (1,514) 168,954
Taj} Amoun Gas Station 40 (955) 2,707,140
272,526 9,678,017
31. Contingent Liabilities and Financial Commitments
a. As of the consolidated statement of financial position date, the Company was
contingently lable and financially committed as follows:
December 31,
2017 2016
JD b
Letters of credit and bills of collections* 440,254,558 291,074,304
Letters of guarantee 8,993,843 8,920,963
Contracts for projects under construction 17,448,221 23,541,700
L This item consists of Standby L/Cs amounting to JD 153 million, (equivalent to
USD 215 million) in favor of Saudi Aramco as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.
b. There are lawsuits in courts raised against the Company for financial claims

estimated at JD 2.4 million as of December 31, 2017 (JD 5.8 million as of
December 31, 2016). Moreover, some prior year's lawsuits were filed against
both the Government and the Company. Consequently, the estimated
contingent liabilities from unsettled lawsuits and the required provisions have
been taken in accounts payable and other credit balances. In the opinion of
the Company's management and its legal consultant, the booked provisions
are sufficient to meet any future obligations.

A lawsuit was raised against Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company on November
29, 2012 by the contractor Joint Venture Companies Christopher de
Constantends (S.A), Whitermoon (S.A), and Engineering Group (K.Z.V)
Limited, the executer of tender No. (16/2006), in which they claimed an
amount of USD 7 million as compensation for work performed, representing
invoices for additional work as well as compensation and interest for the delay
of the work performed. On September 22, 2015, the Court issued its decision
obligating the Company to pay JD 3,605,014 with interest of 9% starting from
September 20, 2015, Moreover, the Court rejected all other claims and contra-
claims, and the Company recerded a provision of JD 4 million for this lawsuit.
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Execution Notice No. (21943/2017/B) was issued by the Judicial Execution
Department on December 3, 2017 obligating Jordan Petroleum Refinery
Company to pay JD 3,605,014 with interest amounting to JD 574,940. The
Company paid the full amount during 2017.

During the year 2015, the Court of Cassation issued its irrevocable Verdict No.
1663/2015 In favor of Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company, prohibiting the
Supreme Regulations Council and the Hashemite Municipality from claiming JD
6,385,064 for regulating a land owned by the Company.

According to the minutes of the Company's meetings with the Ministry of
Finance and the Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company held on November 8, 9
and 16, 2017, to determine the balances of the financial relation between
Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company and the Government (excluding Jordan
Petroleum Product Marketing Company and the Oil Factory) for the balances
as of September 30. 2017, it was agreed as follows:

To confirm the balance of the Ministry of Finance’s main account of JD
195,194,153, the balance of the general sales tax deposits of JD 97,388,860,
and the balance of special sales tax deposits of ID 937,034 as of September
30, 2017 as a right for Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company for refining and
gas activities. Moreover, the Ministry of Finance has also taken a pledge for all
of the debt balances of the Armed Forces, Royal Air Force, Public Security
Directorate, the General Directorate of the Gendarmerie, other security forces,
and governmental departments, within its budget as well as the debts of the
National Electric Power Company for refining and gas activities in the amount
of JD 319,468,856 as of September 30, 2017. In the meantime, the two parties
have agreed that no provision would be made for the debts of Royal Jordanian
Company, municipalities, governmental universities, and independent
governmental managerlal and financial institutions during the relationship
period, provided that if those amounts are not collected through the judiciary,
and the Company is required to write them off, the Ministry of Finance pledges
to pay those debts and any related costs.

To confirm the deposits balance of overpricing differences of oil derivatives of
JD 43,488,857; provisions for constructing alternative fuel tanks of 1D
93,500,103; as well as fees, stamps and fees of IPP Bulletin of JD 9,051,757
as of September 30, 2017.

The two parties have not reached an agreement on the value of the strategic
inventory, as the government is demanding the amount of valuation in 2008 of
JD 156,787,303. At the same time, Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company is
objecting to this amount since these quantities are deposits refundable as
quantities in the event the relationship with the Government is terminated.
Otherwise, the Company will record these deposits at fair value on the expiry
date of the relationship with the Government. Furthermore, the Company has
stated these deposits off-the statement of financial position under contra
accounts in an amount of JD 138,646,494 as of December 31, 2017.

The two parties have not reached an agreement as to who will maintain the
write-off and repair of cylinders balance of JD 10 million.

The two parties have agreed that the provision for lawsuits and other liabilities
balance of 1D 6.3 million as of September 30, 2017 belongs to Jordan Petroleum
Refining Company. In this regard, any amount for a lawsuit won by the
Company will be transferred to the Government. On the other hand, any judicial
expense incurred during the period of its relationship with the Government will
be borne by the Ministry except for the allocated provision.
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The two parties have agreed that the other provisions balance of JD 234
thousand as of September 30, 2017 is the right of Jordan Petroleum Refinery
Company.

The two parties have agreed that the Income tax provision as of September 30,
2017 is the right of the Government and is transferred to the Income and Sales
Tax Department on the due date in accordance with the Income and Sales Tax
Law.

The two parties have agreed that the labor provisions balance (compensation
for work injuries; provision for empioyees’ vacation; provision for end- of-
service indemnity; and provision for death, compensation, and end-of-service)
as of September 30, 2017 is the right of Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company.

The two parties have not reached an agreement as to who will maintain the
provision for doubtful debtsbalance of JD 10.5 million as of September 30,
2017,

The two parties have agreed that the provision for legal compensation balance
of ID 6.27 million as of September 30, 2017 belongs to the Government. In
this regard, the full amount has been paid before the end of 2017.

The two parties have agreed that the penalty and delay in payments provision
balance of 1D 2.74 million as of September 30, 2017 belongs to the
Government. Meanwhile, the full amount has been paid before the end of 2017.

The two parties have not reached an agreement as to who will maintain the
provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventory balance of JD 19.9 million as
of September 30, 2017,

During the year ended December 31, 2016, lordan Petroleum Refinery
Company has charged the interest expense of JD 79.2 million resuiting from
the borrowings on behalf of the Nationa! Electric Power Company to the Ministry
of Finance' s account and the National Electric Power Company’s account. This
is due to charging the Ministry of Finance’s account during the previous years
with the amount of interest instead of recording it in the National Electric Power
Company’s account. In this respect, the Company will transfer this amount to
the Ministry of Finance once It receives it from the Nationa! Electric Power
Company.

According to the meeting held on August 18, 2016 between the Company and
2 committee from the Ministry of Finance, it was agreed that the net financia!
relationship with the Company of JD 79.6 million is to the favor of the Jordan
Petroleum Refinery Company based on the balances as of March 31, 2016. This
was carried out after the Company had reversed the provision for Alia - Royal
Jordanian accounts receivable of 3D 31 million. Furthermore, it was agreed to
book 1D 79.2 million, representing part of the actual borrowing costs incurred
by the Company on its borrowings, in a separate account within accounts
payable and other credit balances as collaterals. Contra to these collaterals, an
equivalent amount will be booked as a receivable due from the Nationa! Electric
Power Company within receivables and other debit balances. This balance will
be transferred to the Ministry of Finance once paid by the National Electric
Power Company without affecting the financial relationship with the
Government. In addition, the two parties agreed to cancel the claims of the
pricing differences of JD 30 million. Accordingly, the net balance of the financial
relationship between the Company and the Government amounted to JD 79.6
million as of March 31, 2016 to the favor of the Company.
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- The Company established the Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company

(a limited liability company) on February 12, 2013, which started its operations
on May 1, 2013. Moreover, part of the Company’s assets was transferred to
Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company at the assets net book value.
In addition, some of the Company’'s employees were seconded to work at
Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company. The required legal procedures
to transfer the title of some buildings and vehicles were also completed during
the year 2016, and the Company is still in the process of concluding the title
transfer of the rest of property and equipment. Furthermore, the Ministry of
Finance sent Letter No.18/4/21247, dated August 24, 2015, to the Company
inquiring about the transfer of part of these assets to Jordan Petroleum
Products Marketing Company at the assets net book value, instead of market
value. In this regard, the Ministry demanded that these assets be revalued at
market value and that the difference in those values be recorded to the favor
of the Government. Consequently, the Company responded to the Ministry of
Finance in a letter dated November 18, 2015, explaining that the decision to
transfer assets at net book vaiue was based on a precedent relating to the
transfer of the assets of the stations to the three marketing companies.
Moreover, the transfer is for restructuring the Company’s activities upon the
expiry of the concession period, which entailed such restructuring.

- The expired concession settlement agreement between Jordan Petroleum

Refinery Company and the Government dated February 25, 2008 stated that
Jordan Petroleum Refinery would keep part of the distribution activities (as one
of the licensed distributing companies with a market share not less than 25 %)
subject to all conditions and tarms applied to the other distributing companies.
Moreover, the agreement stated that this Company's assets shall include the
gas stations owned by Jordan Petroleum Refinery which has the right to split,
own, and sell these stations to the distributing companies. In addition, the
agreement stated that Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company is the owner of the
tanks and the pumps and has the right to sell them to the distribution
companies. The agreement also stated that the Government owns some
entities (storage and loading areas in Agaba and properties within the Jordanian
airports. In the beginning, the Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company was
involved as a partner, but later on, it was agreed that the Government would
be the sole owner of these assets in accordance with an independent meeting
held on September 2012). In the meantime, the agreement stated that the
Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company would keep the remaining ownership of
the property, plant and equipment, including the oil derivatives loading and
distribution facilities. As the Company established Jordan Petroleum Products
Marketing Company that started its operations in May 2013 and transferred the
distribution activities to this company, it follows that the distribution activities
and the gas stations should be transferred to this company.

32. Death, End-of-Service Indemnity, and Compensation Fund

According to the Board of Directors’ resolution to merge the death, disability,
and indemnity fund with the staff end-of-service indemnity into one fund,
namely the (death and end-of-service indemnity compensation fund), and
according to General Announcement No. 11/2012, issued by Jordan Petroleum
Refinery Company, dated March 3, 2012, employees will receive at the end of
service 150% of their monthly gross salary based on the last salary received.
However, this amount should not exceed JD 2,000 for every working year for
those whose gross monthly salaries do not exceed JD 2,000. If the monthly
gross salary exceeds JD 2,000, the employee will be paid one monthly gross
salary for every working year as an end-of-service compensation according to
the last salary paid. The required provision will be annually determined by the
Board of Directors, in light of the amount of the contingent liability, to enable
the Company to build the full provision within five years according to Instruction
No. (5} of the new fund referred to above. Moreover, there is a no shortage in
the required provision balance as of December 31, 2017.
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33. Related Parties Transactions and Balances
The details of the balances and transactions with related parties are as follows:

December 31,

2017 2016
D D

Ministry of Finance debit (Note 6) 158,819,906 187,865,728
Ministry of Finance - surplus from differences

of pricing oil derivatives (Note 14) (46,775,893) (79,278,291)
Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources -

Provision for constructing alternative tanks

(Note 14) (93,500,103) (94,457,951)

- The Company keeps strategic inventory as deposits in favor of the Ministry of
Finance in accordance to the concession agreement ending agreement year
2008 at and its fair value amounted to JD 138,646,494 as of December 31,
2017 and is shown under contra accounts section in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

2017 2016
D D

Subsidy for crude oil derivatives charged to
the Ministry of Finance - debit (Note 24) 36.665,647 2522 136
I ! I !

Ministry of Finance - settlement of targeted
net income with the Government (surplus)

suppoit (Note 26) (81,194,195) {155,039,632)
Ministry of Finance - surplus from differences
of pricing oil derivatives - credit (Note 24) (3,734,789) (9,505,112)
/ I r I

- Executive management and members of the Board of Directors' salaries and
remunerations amounted to JD 1,375,440 for the year 2017 (1D 1,362,112 for
the year 2016),

34. Risk Management

The Company adopts financial policies for managing the various risks within a
specific strategy. Moreover, the Company’s management controls and monitors
risks and performs the optimal strategic allocation of financial assets and
financial liabilities. Risks include interest rate risk, market risk, credit risk, and
foreign currency risk.

a, Capital Risk Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure its ability to continue as a going
concern and maximize the return to stakeholders through achieving an optimal
balance between equity and debt. Moreover, no change in the Company's
overall policy has occurred since the prior year.

b. Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk, also known as funding risk, represents the difficulty that the
Company will encounter in making available the necessary funds to fulfill its
obligations. Moreover, the Company manages its liquidity risk through keeping
adequate reserves, continuously monitoring the expected and actual cash
flows, and matching the maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities.

X Credit Risk
Credit risk relates to the other party’s inability to meet its contractual
obligations leading to the incurrence of losses by the Company. Moreover, the
Company adopts a policy of dealing with creditworthy parties in order to
mitigate the financial losses arising from defaults.
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The Company’s financial assets consisting mainly of receivables and other debit
balances, financial assets at fair vaiue through other comprehensive income,
and cash and cash equivalents do not represent important concentrations of
the credit risk. Furthermore, the debtors are wide spread among the clients’
categories and their geographic areas. Strict credit control is maintained over
the credit iimits granted to each customer separately and on a continuous basis,
and on the provision for the un-collected amounts.

All of the Company’s investments are classified as financial assets at fair value
through comprehensive income.

The risk of investment in shares relates to the change In the value of the
financial instrument as a result of the changes in the closing prices of shares,

The change in the financial market index, whereby the above securities are
traded as of the consolidated financial statements date, represents a 5%
increase or 5% decrease. The following is the impact of the change on the
Company’s owners’ equity.

2017 2016
D D
5% Increase 122,278 144,948
5% Decrease {122,278) (144,948)

d. Market Risk
Market risk is the loss in value resulting from the change in market prices such
as interest rate, foreign currency exchange rate, and equity instruments prices,
and consequently, the change in the fair value of tha financia! instruments cash
flows on-and off-the consolidated statement of financial position.

1. Currencies Risk
The Company’s major transactions are in Jordanian Dinar and US Dollar. The
following are the book values of the Company’s financial assets and financial
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as of December 31:

2017 2016
D b
Asselts - US Dollar 555,990 965,037
Liabilities - US Dollar 577,083,822 525,135,243

Currency risk relates to the changes in the prices of currencies in connection
with foreign currency payments. As the Jordanian Dinar (the functional
currency of the Company) is pegged to the US Dollar, the Company’s
management believes that the foreign currency risk is immaterial.

2. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of change in the value of the financial instrurment
due to changes in market interest rates.

Moreover, the Company continuously manages its exposure to interest rate risk
and considers the various scenarios such as refinancing, renewal of the present
positions, and alternative financing.

The below-mentioned sensitivity analysis is determined according to the
exposure to interest rate risk related to the iending banks as of the consolidated
financial statements date. Moreover, the analysis has been prepared assuming
that the llability amount at the consolidated financial statements date was
outstanding during the whole year. An increase or decrease of half a percentage
point (0.5%) is used, representing the evaluation of the Company's
management of the potential and acceptable change at market interest rates:

2017 2016
D D
0.5% Increase 3,018,931 2,477,300
0.5% Decrease (3,018,931) (2,477,300)
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35. Sectorial and Geographical Distribution

Information on geographical and sectorial distribution:

The Company is organized, for management purposes, into four major
business sectors.

Refining: This sector separates the components of imported lube-oll into a

set of varied oil products according to international specifications. This
depends on licensing from the American UOP Company.

Distribution: Distribution links the production activity and refining activity, on

one hand, and all customers in the various areas of the Kingdom, on the other.
Moreover, distribution fulfills customers’ demands on the Company's

petroleum derivatives and gas.

Manufacturing of Lube-oil: This sector includes the manufacturing and

production of several types of oil required in the local and foreign markets.

Manufacturing and Packing of Gas Cylinders:

This sector

includes

manufacturing, filling, repairing, and maintaining gas cylinders, and
downloading it in three subsidiary Gas Stations.

All of the Company's assets, liabilities, and operations are inside the

Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.

The following are the Company's activities distributed according to activity type:

Income before tax for the year

Other Information
Total sector's assets
Total sector's liabilities

Income before tax for the year

QOther Information
Total sector's assets
Total sector's liabilities

December 31, 2017

Jordan
Patroleum
Refining and Products
Filling Gas Manufacturing Marketing
Cylinders of Lube Oil Company Others Total
o o ln) JD D
15,990,790 11,404,627 11,707,066 78,977 391,181,460
1,092,179,563 32,002,835 239,648,870 4,458,896 1,368,290,164
993,950,090 20,597,457 139,393,314 212,113 1,154,152,974
December 31, 2016
Jardan
Petroleum
Refining and Products
Filling Gas Manufacturing Marketing
Cylinders of Lube Qi) Company Others Total
JD D D D D
21,549,097 13,293,578 11,170,209 67,171 46,080,055
1,057,198,504 16,097,918 165,576,094 4,360,464 1,243,232,980
929,933,761 3,062,775 112,372,079 793,295 1,046,161,910

The marketing company practices its activity by direct selling to costumers
through its stations as of December 31, 2017, and through its subsidiary
companies, in addition to supplying 250 stations with thelr demand from

derivatives, according to the marketing license.
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36. The Future Plan

As the transitional period, agreed upon in the minutes of meetings of the
Company’s future plan during the year 2012 is coming to an end as of the
upcoming April’s end, the Company continues its communications with the
government to reach an agreement about terminating the relationship between
them. These communications include the following key matters:

1- Scheduling loans due to the Company from the government and its
institutions.

2- Determining a fair commission related to the liquid gas activity sufficient
to cover the cost of this activity and generate a fair profit.

3- Continuing the refining activities alongside completing of the fourth
expansion project stages.

It is expected to reach an agreement soon regarding these matters and other
matters related to the relationship between both parties.

Regarding the fourth expansion project, and after each of the American UOP
and KBR companies were assigned to prepare a preliminary design of the
project’s units according to the license on the use of the technology owned by
these two companies, fifteen international companies have been invited to
qualify for the detalled design stage known as Front-End Engineering Design
(FEED). In this regard, nine companies have been qualified, five of which have
already presented proposals currently under study in order to choose the most
suitable offer for this task.

The party to be assigned to design the (FEED) will communicate, in coordination
with the Company, with project financers including export credit agencies,
banks, and other creditors. The Communication with parties interested in
financing the project is still ongoing.

Moreover, it Is expected that a contractor would be chosen for (FEED) by the
end of May during the upcoming year at the latest.

In addition, the Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company continues its
operations involving creating new gas stations in different areas of the
Kingdom. In this regard, stations have been opened in Amman, Jerash, and
Irbid; as well as on the Jordan Highway. Moreover, Amna Armouti gas station
has been renovated and reopened. Concerning its future plan, during 2018, not
less than 10 new stations 100% owned, co-owned, leased, or under the
management of the Jordan Petroleum Products Marketing Company will be
opened all over the Kingdom.

Regarding mineral oils activities, efforts continue to be exerted to market the
Company’s various types of oil products both Inside and outside the Kingdom
through relying on high-quality products. Moreover, agreements have been
signed for exclusive agencies in Iraq, and discussions are ongoing regarding
exporting to several African countries.
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